Jeffrey W. Palton
Chief Executive Officer

www.iskzoo.org

Administrative Services
2030 Porlage Shreel
Kaolamazoo, Ml 49001
(269) 553-8000

Access Center

615 East Crosstown Plkwy
Kalamazoo, Ml 42001
(269) 373-6000

(888) 373-6200

MI Relay Center: 711

Integrated Health &
Psychialiic Services
615 East Crosstown Pkwy
Kalomazoo, Ml 47001
Adults: (269) 553-7037
Youth: (269) 553-7078

Office of Recipient Rights
2030 Parlage Slreet
Kalomazoo, Ml 49001

[269) 364-6920

Services for Adults
with Mental lliness
2030 Porlage Slreel
Kalamazoo, Ml 42001
(269) 553-8000

(888) 373-6200

Services for Adulis with
Intellectual and
Developmental Disabilities
418 West Kalomazoo Ave
Kalamazoo, Ml 49007

(269) 553-8060

MI Relay Center; 711

Services for Youth

and Families

418 Wesl Kalomazoo Ave
Kalamazoo, Ml 49007
(269) 553-7120

Substance Use
Disorder Services
(800) 781-0353

Training

2030 Porlage Slreel
Kalamazoo, Ml 42001
(269) 364-6952

1L
111
V.

VL

VIL

VIII.

XL

X1,

X11I.

XIv.

INTEGRATED

Services of Kalamazoo

Community e Independence ® Empowerment

AGENDA

INTEGRATED Services of Kalamazoo BOARD HAS SCHEDULED ITS
MEETING FOR MONDAY, September 27, 2021, BEGINNING @ 4:00PM
via Microsoft TEAMS.

CALL TO ORDER - CITY & COUNTY DECLARATION
AGENDA

MINUTES July 26, 2021 & August 23, 2021

CITIZEN TIME

BUDGET PUBLIC HEARING FY2021/2022 MOTION/ROLL CALL VOTE

RECIPIENT RIGHTS
a. Recipient Rights Monthly Report (July 2021 & August 2021)

CONSENT CALENDAR Monitoring Reports/AUGUST & SEPTEMBER MOTION/ROLL
CALLVOTE

AUGUST

a. Budgeting (Policy)

b. Finance (Policy)

C. Asset Protection (Policy & Report)

SEPTEMBER

a. Staff Treatment (Policy & Report)

b. Compensation & Benefits (Policy & Report)
PROGRAM SERVICES REPORT VERBAL

a. Program Services Report will be presented at the October 25, 2021 meeting
FINANCIAL REPORTS

a. Financial Condition Report (July 2021 & August 2021)
b. Utilization Report (July 2021 & August 2021)

c. July & Angust Disbursements MOTION

ACTION ITEMS NEW & REVISITED

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER REPORT VERBAL
a, CEO Report

CITIZEN TIME

BOARD MEMBER TIME
a. SWMBH (Southwest Michigan Behavioral Health) Updates/Erik Krogh

ADJOURNMENT




FOCUS
CONNECIT
COVER

pinenship with f INTEGRATIO

Community  Independence ® Empowerment I

INTEGRATED

Services of Kalamazoo

INTEGRATED Services of Kalamazoo (ISK) [uly 26,2021

ISK Board Member Board Declaration of Location Board

Members City/County Members
PRESENT ABSENT

Frik Krogh, CHAIR X Kalamazoo/Kalamazoo

Karen Longanecker, VICE CHAIR X Kalamazoo/Kalamazoo

Nkenge Bergan X Kalamazoo/Kalamazoo

Sarah Carmany X

Ituha Cloud X

Patrick Dolly X Kalamazoo/Kalamazoo

Pat Guenther X Kalamazoo/Kalamazoo

Michael Raphelson X Kalamazoo/Kalamazoo

Sharon Spears X Kalamazoo/Kalamazoo

Jenna Verne X

Veronica McKissaclk, X Kalamazoo/Kalamazoo

COMMISSIONER

VACANCY

ISK - KCMHSAS Staff Present:

Jeff Patton, CEO
Pat Davis

Sheila Hibbs
Roann Bonney
Heather Garcia
Beth Ann Meints
Heidi Oberlin
Dianne Shaffer
Cathie Schau
Alecia Pollard

Michael Schlack, CORPORATE COUNSEL

Demeta Wallace

Providers:

Travis Swieringa
Executive Director
InterAct of Michigan

ISK - KCMHSAS Staff Absent:
Lisa Brannan

Kathy Lentz

Pat Weighman




Call to Order:
Chair Krogh welcomed all in attendance to the July 26, 2021, INTEGRATED Services of Kalamazoo
Board meeting, The Board meeting was called to order at 4:01PM.

Agenda:
Board members reviewed the agenda for changes. Board members are recommending no changes to
the agenda.

Minutes:
Member Guenther, “I MOVE TO ACCEPT THE MINUTES FROM June 28, 2021.” Supported by
Member Raphelson.

ROLL CALL
NAME YEAS NAYS

Erik Krogh, CHAIR

Karen Longanecker, VICE CHAIR

Nkenge Bergan

Patrick Dolly

Pat Guenther

Sharon Spears

Michael Raphelson

Veronica McKissack, COMMISSIONER X
MOTION PASSED.

Mo o Ko X X

Citizen Time: No citizens came forth.

Recipient Rights:

Recipient Rights Monthly Report:
Roann Bonney, ISK, ORR Director, presented the complaints/allegations closed in June 2021.

Abuse Violations:
There were 2 substantiated Abuse I violations in June 2021.

o The remedial actions for these violations were Training (3), Written Reprimand

(3).

The 2 violations occurred at different agencies.
There were 2 substantiated Abuse III violations in June 2021

o The remedial actions for these violations were Employment Termination (1),
Training (2), and Written Reprimand (1).

The 2 violations occurred at the same agency but different program sites.

Neglect Violations:

There were 4 substantiated Neglect II violations in June 2021



INTEGRATED Services of Kalamazoo | 3

o The remedial actions for these violations were Written Reprimand (4), Training
(4), Employment Termination (2), and Demotion (1). There were ten staff
involved in these seven citations. One was a Failure to Report.

3 of the 4 violations occurred at the same agency. 2 of these 3 violations were at
the same program site; one of those violations was Failure to Report. There were 3
Failure to Report violations.

There were four substantiated Neglect I11 violations in June 2021.

o The remedial actions for these violations were Written Reprimand (5), Training
(5), Employment Termination (1), and Policy Revision and Development (1).
One was a Failure to Report.

2 of the 4 violations occurred at the same agency and different program site.
The other 2 of the 4 violations occurred at the same agency and program
site; one of those violations was Failure to Report.

All the ORR case information is forwarded to the ISK Population Directors monthly for any tracking/trending of the RR
information in their areas of authority * (Agencies can include ISK).

Recipient Rights SEMI-ANNUAL Report:
Roann Bonney, ISK, ORR Director, presented the Office of Recipient Rights SEMI-ANNUAL Report
for October 1, 2020-Maarch 31, 2021.

This report deals with the status of recipient rights and the data is reported by type/category
regarding the rights of the recipients receiving services from ISK.

To review the entire Recipient Rights SEMI-ANNUAL Report, please contact Deborah Lanning, ISK,
Administrative Assistant, Office of Recipient Rights by email @ DLanning@iskzoo.org or by phone
(269)364-6920.

Consent Calendar:

Chair Krogh, “Are there any materials that the ISK Board would like to have removed from the
Consent Calendar before we proceed with the ROLL CALL vote?” No materials were recuested to be
removed.

Monitoring Reports:

JULY:

»  Chief Executive Officer Performance *  Board Finance Committee
» Monitoring Executive Performance

»  Chief Executive Officer Role

=  Delegation to the Chief Executive Officer

Member Raphelson, “I MOVE TO APPROVE THE JULY MONITORING REPORTS CONSENT
CALENDAR.” Supported by: Vice Chair Longanecker.

(3]



INTEGRATED Services of Kalamazoo | 4

ROLL CALL
NAME YEAS NAYS
Erik Krogh, CHAIR X
Karen Longanecker, VICE CHAIR X
Nkenge Bergan X
Patrick Dolly X
Pat Guenther X
Sharon Spears X
Michael Raphelson X
Veronica McKissack, COMMISSIONER X

MOTION PASSED.

Program Services Updates:

Beth Ann Meints, ISK, Administrator for CCBHC Operations and Adult Behavioral Health Services,
gave a brief update on Certified Community Behavioral Health Clinic. ISK is in its fourth year of a
SAMHSA grant that supported us developing a CCBHC. These grant dollars have helped ISK to
expand the following service areas:

=  Qutpatient Services for Youth and Adults

» Care Coordination Services to Youth and Acults - coordinate primary and behavioral
health care needs

»  Community Health Workers Youth and Adults - focus on reducing social determinants
of health

= Care Pathways for Health Indicators — BMI, Tobacco Use, Depression Screening,
Screening for risk of Suicidal ideation, alcohol/drug use screening and immunization
care

= Data Analytics - for population health management

During this current year the state of Michigan received notification that it would be eligible to be a
CCBHC demonstration State. ISK is one the 14 CMHSP/non-profit organizations that is eligible
within the state of Michigan to become certified by the State to be a CCBHC. Being certified as a
CCBHC will allow us to increase our access to services (including anyone with a valued mental health
and/or substance use diagnosis), expand our crisis services, further expand our outpatient services,
Care Coordination, Community Health Workers allowing for better coordination between physical
and behavioral health care needs. The CCBHC will also allow ISK to receive a Prospective Payment
methodology, which is outside of the capitated payment that ISK is currently under. The Prospective
Payment methodology will include cost for those additional non-hillable services (care coordination
and community health workers) who assist in coordinating care between the physical and behavioral
health care systems.

(4]



INTEGRATED Services of Kalamazoo | 5

Dianne Shaffer, ISK, Senior Executive for Policy, Planning, and Innovation gave a brief update on the
Criminal Justice Grant. Integrated Services of Kalamazoo, in collaboration with all Kalamazoo
County Law enforcement agencies and Kalamazoo Consolidated Dispatch will establish a plan to
provide behavioral health services for the Kalamazoo Community through a three-year grant up to
$550,000.00 from the Bureau of Justice Assistance.

The proposal will create a Police Mental Health Collaboration (PMHC) that consistently endeavors to
strengthen the existing strengths while providing additional supports for a comprehensive, cross
system response for individuals with mental illness or co-occurring substance use disorders.
Ieadership from ISK & law enforcement will develop an advisory council that will effectively guide
and support the PMHC. The PMHC Coordinator along with the advisory council will develop and
implement a strategic plan that will include:

% Data reporting process

% Co-responding Crisis Response Model with mental health expertise
4 Case Consultation

& Crisis Response Center

% Intensive Training for law enforcement and mental health staff

That concludes our reports.

Member Raphelson, “Excellent presentation from the both of you and 24-hour mental health
emergency services is long overdue. I've been preaching for years about the need to offer such a
valuable service in our community. This is exciting news! Our hospital emergency rooms are overly
tasked with multiple medical issues which often makes it impossible to truly focus on those with a
true mental health emergency.”

Financial Condition Report:
Pat Davis, ISK, Deputy Director, Administrative Services, presented the Financial Condition report for
the period ending June 30, 2021.

SWMBH:

Revenues:

Revenues for the nine-month (9) period are projected to be $54,515,933 compared to budgeted
revenues of $57,028,994. Consequently, revenues are in an un-favorable position by appl'oximately
$2,513,061.

Expenditures:
Expenditures for the nine-month (9) period are $54,515,933 compared to budgeted expenditures of
$57,028,994. Consequently, expenditures are in a favorable position by approximately $2,513,061.

ISK:

Revenues:

Revenues for the nine-month (9) period are $12,960,221 compared to budgeted revenues of
$13,860,852. Consequently, revenues are in an un-favorable position by approximately $900,031.

(5]



INTEGRATED Services of Kalamazoo | 6

Expenditures:
Expenditures for the nine-month (9) period are $12,334,167 compared to budgeted expenditures of
$13,446,173. Consequently, expenditures are in a favorable position by approximately $1,112,006.

Utilization Reports:
Pat Davis, ISK, Deputy Director, Administrative Services, presented the June 30, 2021, Utilization

Report.
= Youth Community Inpatient Services is unfavorable by $70,072

*  MI Adult Community Inpatient Services is at (1,172) days and unfavorable at $1,110,727
= Community Living Supports, Personal Care, and Crisis Residential is favorable at $1,192,949

Investment Report:
Pat Davis, ISK, Deputy Director, Administrative Services, presented the June 30, 2021, Investment
Report.

PNC Bank has 80.53% cash, U.S. Federal Government (via PNC) 14.78% and DCAR’s & DC (via
Inclependent Bank) 4.13%. Investments remain consistent.

June Disbursements (MOTION):
Member Spears, “BASED ON THE BOARD FINANCE MEETING REVIEW, I MOVE THAT ISK
APPROVE TE[EJU NE 2021 VENDOR DISBURSEMENTS OF $7,560,805.44.”

Supported by Vice Chair Longanecker.

ROLL CALL
NAME YEAS NAYS

Erik Krogh, CHAIR

Karen Longanecker, VICE CHAIR

Nkenge Bergan

Patrick Dolly

Pat Guenther

Sharon Spears

Michael Raphelson

Veronica McKissack, COMMISSION ER
MOTION PASSED.

KRR AR R RKX

ACTION ITEMS (New & Revisited) No materials were scheduled to be reviewed.

Chiel Executive Officer Report:

Our ISK August Board meeting will be the ISK Board Planning Meeting. All reports for ORR, Program
Services, and Monitoring Reports will be reviewed at the September 27th meeting, The entire August
meeting will be devoted to future planning, There is a lot of exciting opportunities on the horizon for
ISK to improve services and assist in improving the number of vacancies in the Direct Care Workers
profession. Congratulations to Sarah Carmany, ISK, Board member for being the recipient of the

(6]



INTEGRATED Services «f Kalamazoo

National Association of Councils on Developmental Disabilities Award for her dedicated advocacy
worl)

Congratulations to Patrick Dolly, Nkenge Bergan and Karen Longanecker for being re-appointed to the
18K Board. And congratulations to Michael Seals for his appointment to the ISK Board. We will reach
out to Michael regarding his start date.

That concludes my report.
Citizen Time: No citizens came forth.

Board Member Time:

SWMBH (Southwest Michigan Behavioral Health) Updates/Erik Krogh:

There are no new SWMBH updates or pending issues to shate with the ISK Board. Also, their budget
is indeed in a favorable position. Pat Guenther, 1SK, Board member and alternate to the SWMBH
Board had no additional updates to share.

Thank you to the 15K Board members for attending today’s meeting. There are several wonderful
things happening for ISK. The future upgrades to the 418 building for the implementation of the new
CCBHC facility. Excellent job to Jeff and the ISK staff!

Patrick Dolly: Have a great evening and it was a great meeting!

Sharon Spears: The outside temperature is 88 degrees. I'm enjoying my air conditioning and everyone
traveling from this meeting be safe and have a great evening,

Pat Guenther: With the great demand for direct-care workers in our state and the need to give
assistance to people who are sick, injured, mentally or physically disabled, or the elderly and fragile
shouldr’t there be classes or trainings with incentives that would stimulate interest in this type of
work?

Jeff commented, “there are trainings for these types of positions. However, at the August, ISK Board Planning meeting
Lwill be sharing with the ISK Board an incentive that we hiave implemented that should generate greater interest in the
direct-care workers profession”.

Michael Raphelson: There is a true disconnect when it comes to the direct-care workers. It is such
an essential position and I'm slightly worried about the impact on patient care, if the vacancy is not

filled.

Nkenge Bergan: Have a great evening!

Karen Longanecker: 1 appreciate all the comments regarding the direct-care workers and keeping it
on the radax!

(7]

7




INTEGRATED Services of Kalamazoo | 8

Veronica McKissack: There is a disconnect when it comes to the direct-care workers in many
entities, but there is also a disconnect when it comes to a livable wage. Therefore, the Kalamazoo
County Board of Commissioners is doing a wage study within the county and will be making

decisions about how to bridge the wage gap.

ADJOURNMENT:

Member Spears, “I MOVE TO ADJOURN THE ISK BOARD MEETING.” Supported by Vice

Chair Longanecker.

ROLL CALL
NAME

Erik Krogh, CHAIR

Karen Longanecker, VICE CHAIR

Nkenge Bergan

Patrick Dolly

Pat Guenther

Sharon Spears

Michael Raphelson

Veronica McKissack, COMMISSION ER
MOTION PASSED.

Meeting was adjourned at 5:30PM.

Demeta J. Wallace

Board Liaison
INTEGRATED Services of Kalamazoo

(8]

).<
z

NAYS

e e e e i



FOCUS
CONNECT
COVER

wit @k"ﬂ

I11.

INTEGRATED

Services of Kalamazoo

Community ¢ Independence ® Empowerment

INTEGRATED Services of Kalamazoo (ISK') August 23,2021

ISK Board Member Board Declaration of Location Board
Members City/County Members
PRESENT ABSENT
Erik Krogh, CHAIR X Kalamazoo/Kalamazoo
Karen Longanecker, VICE CHAIR X Kalamazoo/Kalamazoo
Nkenge Bergan X Kalamazoo/Kalamazoo
Sarah Carmany X Kalamazoo/Kalamazoo
Ituha Cloud X
Patrick Dolly X Kalamazoo/Kalamazoo
Pat Guenther X Kalamazoo/Kalamazoo
Michael Raphelson X Kalamazoo/Kalamazoo
Sharon Spears X Kalamazoo/Kalamazoo
Jenna Verne X Kalamazoo/Kalamazoo
Veronica McKissacle, X Kalamazoo/Kalamazoo
COMMISSIONER
VACANCY
ISK - KCMHSAS Staff Present: - ISK - KCMHSAS Stalf Absent:
Jeff Patton, CEO Roann Bonney
Pat Davis Lisa Brannan
David Anderson Kathy Lentz
Sheila Hibbs Pat Weighman
Heather Garcia
Beth Ann Meints
Heidi Oberlin
Dianne Shaffer
Alecia Pollard
Michael Schlack, CORPORATE COUNSEL
Demeta Wallace
Providers:
Travis Swieringd Fi Spalvieri Scott Schrum
Executive Director Chiefl Executive Officer Chief Executive Officer

InterAct of Michigan Community Living Options Residential Opportunities Inc.



INTEGRATED Services of Kalamazoo

Guests:
= Jack Abate, Construction Operations Director/Miller Davis Construction Company
= Gabe Alvey, Principal and Senior Architect/Diekema Hamann Architecture and Engineering
" Katic Potts, Architect/Dickema Hamann Architecture and Engineering
»  Lori Anderson
" Felicia Evans
»  Michacl Seals

Call to Order:
Chair Krogh welcomed all in attendance to the August 23, 2021, INTEGRATED Services of Kalamazoo
Board Planning meeting, The meeting was called to order at 4:00PM.

Agenda:
Board members reviewed the agenda for changes. Board members are recommending no changes to

the agenda.

ROLL CALL
NAME YEAS NAYS

Erik Krogh, CHAIR X
Karen Longanecker, VICE CHAIR X
Nkenge Bergan X
Patrick Dolly X
Pat Guenther X
Sharon Spears X
Michael Raphelson X
Jenna Verne X
Veronica McKissack, COMMISSIONER X

MOTION PASSED.

Citizen Time:

Scott Schrum

Chief Executive Officer

Residential Opportunities Inc.

Mr. Schrum read his testimony and the testimony of a recipient who received the Direct Care Wage
increase into the record.

“On behalf of the ROI Board of Directors and our staff we thank ISK for the

recent funding support in response to the staffing crisis of ROI and other

organizations. In addition to thanking the ISK Board, we also specifically thank Jeff Patton,
Pat Davis, Kathy Lentz, and anyone else in the ISK administration responsible for this funding
SUP]OIT.

We certainly recognize and appreciate the financial risk in providing this investment in our staff. Our
initial feedback for you is all positive. We have had 9 former high-quality staff reapply for work with
us. The number of applications for employment have tripled and the quality of applicants has
increased, We can be more selective in who we offer positions to. Of course, ISK’s mission is not to
create employment opportunities or to help people out of poverty. It is to improve the lives of people



INTEGRATED Services of Kalamazon

who are eligible for behavioral health sexvices. During the past few years ROl has terminated services
to over 40 people receiving supported living services and we have closed two group homes. We hope
your investment in our staff allows us to reverse these trends.”

“] don't know where o who te direct my gratitude and thankfulness, but 1 need to express it. Thank
you is an understatement. Thank you everyone that has advocated so hard for such a significant and
completely unexpected raise. When 1 was originally told I stood dumbfounded as it didn’t really sink
in, Now that I've seen the numbers turn on KRONOS and 1 sit down and redo my budget 1've gotten a
sense of cuphoria, relief & so many tears of gratitude. Ilove my job, I believe caring for others and
animals is my calling, and since my younger years I've always been drawn to special needs and the
clderly. Maybe the vulnerable needing someone in their corner, helping them feel secure, loved, cared
for and a sense of normaley. I've been with the company for a couple months shy of a decade, and over
the years we all have been through the ringer. Short staffed, long hours, overworked, exhausted etc,
just to make enough to pay the bills with little to nothing lefr over for anything outside of the monthly
budget.

This ratse means more to me than just more money, it means relief, decreased anxiety and stress and
for once in 10 yrs. F don’e HAVE to work so much overtime just to survive, I can simply work OT just
because | enjoy 'my family". I've prayed and prayed recently and the week before the

announcement I redid my entire resume because in my heart as much as it hurt, 1 had to be honest
with myself that it was time to let go and move on for stress & financial purposes. That's no longer an
issue. So again, this raise means mare to me than just money, it means that [ get to stay with my family.
I get to come to work and not be consumed with how many hours 1've got to try and work just to be
able to pay bills. That is no longer a thought, for once 1 will be able to cash in some vacay time for
rejuvenation if ever needed. Thank you will never be enough ro you and everyone that has fought for
this. Finally, the work and love poured into this company is reflected. I just needed someone to be able
to know how much the raise means across the board on so many Jevels, On behalf of all ROT staff
THANK YOUm"

Fi Spalvieri

Chief Executive Officer

Community Living Options

“Two months ago, | was here to tell you about the struggles we were having in finding employees with
a wage of $11.35 an hour.

Today I'm here to say thank you for listening and respending to that call for help. CLO, which has
heen a Kalamazoo based organization for 35 years has struggled with the challenges of not being able
to recruit qualified employees for the last 4 years, With Covid, we hit an all-time low in the
applications we were getting. Despite raising our wage two years ago, we still fell below the market
when competing with other entry level jobs.

Covid added a new twist on what is “essential.” I am proud of the CLO workforce, and 'm proud to
say that our employees stayed the course during a pandemic that continues to spread.

(31



INTEGRATED Services of Kalamazoo

By increasing the rates to allow for wage increases, ISK is making a difference not just at CLO, butin
the community. The work done by direct care professionals is essential. By being able to raise the
wage table, we will inadvertently improve services to those we serve.

We are now advertising a starting wage of $15.60 an hour. I know that this comes with risk for both
ISK as well as CLO. I believe that we will reap its reward by being able to recruit from a qualified
work pool, filling our openings to reduce the need to mandate an employee to work over their
scheduled time. It may take a little time, but we are already seeing an increase in applications coming
in. With that, we hope to be able to work with ISK to serve those waiting for services.

On behalf of the CLO family, our Board, employees, and those we serve, we thank this Board and the
leadership of ISK, especially Kathy Lentz, Pat Davis, and Jeff Patton. We look forward with hope andl
optimism to better days. Thank you for stepping up and continuing to go the extra mile for your
providers.

NEW Construction and Renovation of the ISK 418 W. Kalamazoo Avenue Building:

Jeff Patton, Integrated Services of Kalamazoo, Chief Executive Officer, opened the presentation on the
NEW Construction and Renovation of the ISK 418 W, Kalamazoo Avenue Building. He introduced
the presenter who would be explaining the presentation in greater detail. Bricfly, he discussed how
these significant upgrades to the existing site would help to increase access to mental health and
substance use disorder treatments. It would also expand capacity and establish an even greater
innovative partnership with law enforcement, hospitals, schools and reduce recidivism.

DIEKEMAHAMANN millelidlavis

architecture ENPEMIENCE MATTENS

(4]



INTEGRATED Services of Kalamazoo

Introduction — Jeff Patton

Review of current drawings/footprint - Gabe Alvey/DHAI
Preliminary Project Schedule — Jack Abate/VID

Sitework plan — David Anderson

CCBHC and Programming Benefits — Beth Ann Meints
Costs and Financing — Pat Davis

Q&A - ISK/DHAE/MD

DIEKEMAHAMANN millegtlavis

Integrated Services of Kalamazoo
Mission Statement
Promote and provide mental health,
intellectual/developmental disability and substance
use disorder resources that empower people to

succeed

DIEKEMAHA

(5]



INTEGRATED Services of Kalamazoo

Project Goals
« Increase access to behavioral health services for the
populations of focus
Dellver comprehensive coordinated care providing access to
evidence-based Interventions for individuals with complex
needs
Deliver integrated care for behavioral health and physical

health risks and needs

DIEKEMAHAMANN _milledklavis

Funding for the Project
« Stryker Johnston Foundation---$3,000,000
« Irving S. Gilmore Foundation---5 750,000

DIEKEMAL | —milledgiavis

(6]

6



* Project Overview

* Design/Construction Team

David Anderson, I1SK
Dianne Shaffer, 15K

Beth Ann Meints, ISK

Patricia Davis, 15K

INTEGRATED Services of Kalamazoo

Norm Hamann, Dickema Hamann

Gabe Alvey, Diekema Hamann
Katie Potts, Diekema Hamann

Jack Abate, Miller-Davis

To review the entire presentation on the NEW Construction and Renovation of the [SK 418 W.
Kalamazoo Avenue Building, please contact Dianne Shaffer, Integrated Services of Kalamazoo,
Senior Executive for Policy, Planning, and Innovation at dshaffer@iskzoo.org.

ACTION ITEMS (New & Revisited) Budget Amendment #3:

Member Spears, “BEGINNING BUDGET - $93,966,887.00. INCREASE THE BUDGET BY
$3,177,187.00 FOR A TOTAL BUDGET AMOUNT OF $97,144,074.00.” Supported by Member

Carmany.

ROLL CALL
NAME

Erik Krogh, CHAIR
Karen Longanecker, VICE CHAIR
Nkenge Bergan : T
Sarah Carmany
Patrick Dolly
Pat Guenther
Sharon Spears
Michael Raphelson
Jenna Verne
Veronica McKissack, COMMISSIONER
MOTION PASSED.

(7]

<
%

P ki i et e D D e

T NAYS

7



INTEGRATED Scervices of Kalamazoo | 8

Citizen Time:

Michael Seals

Congratulations Nkenge! I'm impressed with everything that was shared tonight. The testimonials,
the upgrades to 418, and the commitment to building an even better community.

Board Member Time

Pat Guenther: Jeff, you and your staff continue to produce such fine worl. It is indeed a sign that
when you apply yourself with careful thoughtfulness and have the commitment to our persons served
that wonderful things can be achieved. Thank you for your outstanding work and service!

Karen Longanecker: Scott Schrum and Fi Spalvieri those testimonials were a grear example of
reward for those who often work the hardest but get paid the least. 1echo the sentiments ol
gratefulness and gratitude hecause their work is challenging, and it takes a lot of effort and attention.

Sarah Carmany: 1 was the recipient of the 2021 Betty Williams “Champions of Equal Opportunity”
Award from the National Association of Councils on Developmental Disabilities (NACDD). Also, 1 am
exploring the possibility of attending Kalamazoo Valley Community College, soon.

Sharon Spears: 1 echo the comments made by Karen Longanecker. Those testimonials almost had me
in tears because just like Karen, we both have had and do have a recipient who needs the services
provided by a direct care worker.

Michael Raphelson: Scott Schrum will be retiring from ROI after 38 years of excellent leadership in
this community. You have been a tremendous asset!

Nlkenge Bergan: [ too echo the comments by the pervious speakers, Thank you, Scott Schrumfor
your leadership and forward thinking, The connectivity between multiple agencies working together
to improve lives in our community continues to amaze me! | have been employed with the Kalamazoo
Public School system for 11 years. As of last Friday, August 20, 2021, my employment with KPS
officially ended. I'm elated to report that | have accepted a new position with Kalamazoo Valley
Comimunity College as the next Associate Vice Presicent of Student Developiment Services.

Jenna Verne: Such wonderful stories and e-mails that were shared by Scott Schrum & Fi Spalvieri.
The Direct Care Workers really do the hard work. The plans for the upgrades to 418 to help make
access better is phenomenal. Congratulations to Nkenge! You will be missed at KPS.

Patrick Dolly: Congratulations to Nkenge! Thank you, ROL & Community Living Options, for sharing
those powerful testimonials. It was wonderful news hearing those. My appreciation to all involved
making such monumental things happen.

Veronica McKissack: Congratulations Nkenge! I'm extremely impressed with the wage increase for
the Direct Care Worker. Decisions like these are in-line with the work that the Kalamazoo County
Board of Commissioners is committed to when it comes to wage increases and eliminating wage
inequality.

(8]




INTEGRATED Services of Kalamazoo | ¢

Just a gentle reminder that I was appointed by the Kalamazoo County Board of Commissioners to
serve as the Commissioner on the ISK Board.

Also, the Kalamazoo County Board of Commissioners held interviews for the vacancy on the ISK
Board and no decision was reached on a final candidate to serve on this board. We will continue to

discuss the centralization of services.

Erik Krogh: Thank you Commissioner McKissack for the clarification regarding the Kalamazoo
County Board of Commissioners representation.

All the presentations tonight were incredible. Congratulations Nkenge!
Scott will be missed, but the impacts you have made on the service population will continue.
ADJOURNMENT:

Vice Chair Longanecker, “I MOVE TO ADJOURN THE ISK BOARD PLANNING MEETING.”
Supported by Member Bergan.

ROLL CALL
NAME YEAS - NAYS

Erik Krogh, CHAIR

Karen Longanecker, VICE CHAIR

Nkenge Bergan

Sarah Carmany

Patrick Dolly

Pat Guenther

Sharon Spears

Michael Raphelson

Jenna Verne

Veronica McKissack, COMMISSIONER
MOTION PASSED.

Pl S i S SR

sl e

Meeting was adjourned at 5:15PM.

Demeta J. Wallace
Administrative Coordindator
INTEGRATED Services of Kalamazoo

[9]



Integrated Services of Kalamazoo

To review the FY2021-2022 Budget the link to our website has been
provided below.

https://iskzoo.org/about-us/board/

BUDGET PUBLIC
HEARING FY2021-2022

; (1T
INTEGRATED v

.:rhml:..n Imt g i
-.-.»0“‘) d I.;!r

UL Y [premey

Pat Davis
Integrated Services of Kalamazoo
Deputy Director of Administrative Services

INTEGRATED

Services of Kalamazoo

Communily ¢ Independence * Empowermen



Vl.a.

Office of Recipient Rights
Report to the Mental Health Board

On Complaints/Allegations
Closed in: July 2021




Office of Recipient Rights Report to the Mental Health Board

Complaints/Allegations Closed in July 2021

July 2021 FY 20-21| July 2020 FY 19-20
Total # of Complaints Closed 22 302 32 413
Total # of Allegations Clesed 43 524 46 636
Total # of Allegations Substantiated 16 167 5 159

The data below represents the total number of closed allegations and substantiations for the following categories:
Consumer Safety, Dignity/Respect of Consumer, Treatment Issues, and Abuse/Neglect,

by the Staie ORR

ALLEGATIONS July 2021 July 2020
Category TOTAL SUBSTANTIATED | TOTAL SUBSTANTIATED
Consumer Safety i 0 1 0
Dignity/Respect of Consumer 1 10 1
Treatment Issues/Suitable Services 5 2 6 0
(Including Person Centered Planning)
Abuse | 0 0 0 ¢
Abuse Tl & 2 0 0
Abuse 111 6 0 6 [
Neglect | 0 0 0 0
Neglect 11 1 1 1 0
Neglect 111 8 6 2 ]
20 3
APPEALS July 2021. ! FY 20-21 Julky 2020, FY 15-20
Uphald Investigative Findings & Plan of Action | D =+ 770 7 A 3
Return Investigation to ORR,; 0. 50 " 10
Reopen o Reinvestigate T : :
Uphold Investigative Findings but Recommend {) 10 210
Respondent Take Additional or Different Action | -~ ;
to Remedy the Violation | :
Reguest an External Investigation 0. 0 0

ABUSE AND NEGLECT DEFINITIONS ~ SUMMARIZED

Abuse Class I means serious in'j ury to the recipient by staff. Also, sexual coutact between a staff and a recipient.
Abuse Class I means non-serious injury or exploiiation to the recipient by staff and includes using unreasonable force,

even if no injury results.

Abuse Class I1I means communication by staff to a recipient that is threatening or degrading. (such as; putting down,

making fun of, insulting)

Neglect Class I means a serious injury occurred because a staff person DID NOT do something he or she should have
done (an omission). It also includes failure to repost apparent or suspected abuse | or neglect | of a recipient.

Neglect Class II means a non-serious injury occutred to a recipient because a staff person DID NOT do something he
or she should have done (an cmission). 1t also includes failure to report apparent or suspected abuse Il or neglect 1l of a

recipient

Neglect Class ITI means a recipient was put at risk of physical harm or sexual abuse because a staff person DID NOT
do something he or she should have done per rule or guideline. It alse includes failire to report apparent or suspected

abuse I or neglect [} of a recipient.




ORR ADDENDUM TO MH BOARD REPORT
August 2021

Re: July 2021 Abuse/Neglect Violations

July

Abuse Violations

" There wete two substantiated Abuse II violations in July 2021,

o The remedial actions for these violations are Training {1), Written

Reprimand (1).

The 2 violations occurred at the same agency, but different

program sites.

Neglect Viclations

" There was one substantiated Neglect 11 violation in July 2021.

o The remedial actions for this violation are Training (1), Written

Reprimand (1).

" There were six substantiated Neglect III violations in July 2021, One

was a Failure to Report.

o The remedial actions for these violations are Training (3), Verbal
Counseling (2), Written Reprimand (3), Plan of Service Revision

(1), Employment Termination (2).

3 of the 6 violations occurred at the same agency. 2 of these 3

violations were at the same program site; one of those violations
was Failure to Report. 2 of the 3 remaining violations occurred at

the same agency but different program sites.

All of the ORR case information is forwarded to (b KCMISAS Popubation Directors on 2 montbly basis for any tracking/Arending of

the RR information in (heir arcas of authority. *(Agencics can include KCMHSAS),



Vl.a.

Office of Recipient Rights
Report to the Mental Health Board
On Complaints/Allegations

Closed in: August 2021



Office of Recipient Rights Report to the Mental Health Board
Complaints/Allegations Closed in August 2021

Angust 2021 FY 20-21{ August 2020 FY 19-20
Total # of Complaints Closed 41 343 | 37 450
Total # of Aflegations Closed 74 597 | 65 701
Total # of Allegations Substantiated 25 192 | 9 168

The data below represents the total number of closed allegations and substantiations for the following categories:
Consumer Safety, Dignity/Respect of Consumer, Treatment Issues, and Abuse/Neglect.

ALLEGATIONS ‘August 2021 .

August 2020
Category | SUBSTANTIATED |

| SUBSTANTIATED

Consumer Safety

Dignity/Respect of Consuiner

Treatment Issues/Suitable Services
(Including Person Centered Planning)

Abuse | |
Abuse Il D) 2
Abuse 111 ) T
Negiect 1 o 15
Neglect I |2 2
Neglect I B : T
122 8 ]9

0

Uphold Investigative Findings & Plan of Action | 1.7
Return Investigation to ORR; :
HReopen or Reinvestigale

Uphold Envestigative Findings but Recommend
Respondent Take Additional or Different Aetion
to Remedy the Violation

Request an External Investigation

by the State ORR

ABUSE AND NEGLECT DEFINITIONS - SUMMARIZED

Abuse Class I means serious injury to the recipient by staff. Also, sexual contact between a staff and a recipient.
Abuse Class II means pon-serious injury or exploitation to the recipient by staff and includes using unreasonable force,
even if no injury results.

Abuse Class ITI means communication by staff to a recipient that is threatening or degrading. (such as; putting down,
making fun of; insulting)

Neglect Class T means a serigus injury occured because a staff person DID NOT do something he or she should have
done (an omission). It also includes failure to report apparent or suspected abuse I or neglect I of a recipient.

Neglect Class 11 means a non-serious injury occurred to a recipient because a staff person DID NOT do something he
or she should have done (an omission). It also includes failure to report apparent or suspected abuse 11 or neglect Il of a
recipient '

Neglect Class [l means a recipient was put at risk of physical harm or sexual abuse because a staff person DID NOT
do something he or she should have done per rule or guideline. It also includes failure to report apparent or suspected
abuse 11l or neglect Il of a recipient.




ORR ADDENDUM TO MH BOARD REPORT
September 2021

Re: August 2021 Abuse/Neglect Violations

August

Abuse Violations

There were two substantiated Abuse Il violations in August 2021.

o The remedial actions for these violations were Training (2), Staff
Transfer (1), and Written Reprimand (3).

The 2 violations occurred at the same agency and program.

There were two substantiated Abuse I violations in August 2021.

¢ The remedial actions for these violations were Staff Transfer (1), and
Written Reprimand (5).

The 2 violatiens occurred at different agencies.

Neglect Viclations

There were two substantiated Neglect 1T violations in August 2021.

o The remedial actions for these violations were Employment
Termination (1), and Written Reprimand (1). Both were Neglect 11,
Failure to Report violations.

The 2 violations occurred at different agencies.

There were five substantiated Neglect III violations in August 2021,

O The remedial actions for this violation were Employment
Termination (2), Training (2), Written Reprimand (4), and Policy
Revision/Development (1). One was a Neglect 111, Failure to Report
violation.

Allolhe ORR case information is forwaeded to tie KCMISAS Population Directors on a monthly basis for any tracking/trending of
the RR infrmation in their arcas of authority. *(Agencics can includs KCMHSAS).




3 of the violations occurred at the same agency but 3 different
programs. The other 2 violations also occurred at the same
agency and the same program.

All of the ORR case information is forwarded to the KCMHSAS Population Directors on a monthly basis for any trackingftrending of
{he RR information in their areas of authority. *{Apeucies can include KCMHSAS).




VILa.

_ August
INTEGRATED SERVICES OF KALAMAZQOO
BOARD POLICY 1115
ARFBA: (Governance
SECTION:  Executive Limitations PAGE: 1 ofl
: SUPERSEDES:
SUBJECT: BubDGETING
REVISED: 08/22/2011
PURPOSE/EXPLANATION:

To establish limitations of means regarding the budgeting process.

POLICY:

L

HR

EXHIBITS:

A,

Budgeting any fiscal year or the remaining part of any fiscal year shail not deviate
materially from Board Ends priorities, or risk fiscal jeopardy. Accordingly, the
Chief Executive Officer may not cause or allow budgeting which;

A. Daes not provide for a Public Hearing prior to formally adopting the budget
consistent with Michigan Compiled Law (MCL) Section 141,412,

B. Contains too little information to enable credible projection of revenues and
expenses, cash flow, and disclosure of planning assumptions.

C. Plans the expenditure in any fiscal year of more funds than are
conservatively projected to be received in that period.

D. Reduces the current assets at any time to less than a favorable relationship
with current liabilities,

E. Does not provide for Board prerogatives such as Board development, and
Board and commitiee meetings.

F. Endangers the fiscal soundness of future years or ignores the building of
organizational capability sufficient to achieve ends in future years.

This policy will be monitored through internal mechanisms on a quarterly basis, and
external mechanisms on an annual basis,

MCL Section 141.412.




SUBJECT: V.03 Budgeting Page:

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER: APPROVED:

Jeff Patton Erik Krogh
Chief Executive Officer Board Chair




VILb.

August
INTEGRATED SERVICES OF KALAMAZOO :
BOARD POLICY V.04
AREA: Governance
SECTION: Executive Limitations PAGE: 1 of 2
SUPERSEDES:

SUBIJECT: FINANCE
REVISED: 08/22/2011

PURPOSE/EXPLANATION:
To establish limitations of means regarding the financial condition of the agency.
POLICY:

L. With respect to the actual, ongoing condition of the organization’s financial health,
the Chief Executive Officer may not cause or allow the development of fiscal
jeopardy or a material deviation of actual expenditures from Board priorities
established in Ends policies. Accordingly, the Chief Executive Officer may not:

Expend more funds than have been received in the fiscal year to date, unless the debt
guideline (below) is met.

A Expenditures can not be authorized that exceed the amount appropriated
within the budget or in excess of the available funds as that action creates a
debt,

B. Indebt the organization,

C. Use any Long-Term Reserves, aside from their intended use, without Board
approval.

D. Fail to settle payroli and debts in a timely manner.

E. Allow tax payments or other government-ordered payments or filings to be

overdue or inaccurately filed.
F. Acquire, encumber or dispose of real property without Board approval.

G. Operate without a set of administrative pusrchasing and procurement
guidelines and procedures consistent with current law.

H. Fail to adhere to generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in all
accounting activities unless more restrictive requirements exist.

L Fail to use a legally defined procurement process to promote effective and




SUBJECT: V.D4 Finance Page:

equitable purchasing practices,

1L This policy will be monitored through internal mechanisms annually.
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER: APPROVED:
Jeff Patton .Erik Krogh

Chief Executive Officer Board Chair




Vil.c.

INTEGRATED SERVICES OF KALAMAZOO
BOARD POLICY V.07
AREA: Governance
SECTION: Executive Limitations PAGE: 1of2
SUPERCEDES:

SUBIECT: ASSET PROTECTION

REVISED: (8/26/2013

PURPOSE/EXPLANATION:

" To establish limitations of means regarding asset protection.

POLICY:
I The Chief Executive Officer may not allow assets to be unprotected, madequately
maintained nor uanecessarily risked. Accordingly, he/she may not:

A. Fail to insure against theft and casualty losses to at least 80 percent
replacement value and against liability losses to Board members, staff or the
organization itself in an amount comparable to other CMH'’s.

B. Allow un-bonded personnel access to material amounts of funds.

C. Subject plant and equipment to improper wear and tear or insufficient
maintenance.

D. Unnecessarily expose the organization, its Board or staff to claims of
liability.

E. Fail to protect intellectual property, information and files from loss or
significant damage.

F. Receive, process or disburse funds under controls which are insufficient to
meet the Board appointed auditor’s standards.

G. Endanger the organization’s public image or credibility, particularly in ways
that would hinder its accomplishment of mission.

I1. This policy will be monitored through a report on an overview of ISK insurance

coverage on an annual basis.




SUBJECT: V.07 Asset Protection Page:

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER: APPROVED:
Jeff Patton Erik Krogh

Chief Executive Officer Board Chair



INSURANCE OVERVIEW FOR ASSET PROTECTION REPORT
September 27, 2021

Our liability/property insurance is through the Michigan Municipal Risk Management
Authority (“MMRMA”). MMRMA was created under the authority of the Michigan statutes
to provide risk management and risk financing services to local governmental entities such as
15K,

Liability coverage through MMRMA totals $15,000,000 per occurrence.

1SK board members are covered by MMRMA for their official duties performed on behalf of
ISKK,

MMRMA pays for the costs of defending certain claims against ISK as well as any damages
assessed.

Workers compensation insurance is purchased through Accident Fund Co of America. We
have limits of $500,000 per accident and $500,000 per disease claim.

Our long term and short-terin disability coverage is purchased through The Hartford Group.
For long term coverage (LTD), employees will receive 60% of their income up to $130,000
after a 180-day waiting period (maximum benefit of $6500 per month), For shott-term
disability (STD), employees will receive 60% of their covered salary up to $130,000
beginning on the 22 day after the accident or 22™ day after an illness that causes them to be
off work (maximum benefit of $1500C per week). Maximum duration for STD is 23 weeks or
the beginning of L'TD benefits, whichever is earlier.

Group life insurance is through The Hartford Group. Employees receive 0.5 times their
salary rounded to the next higher $1,000 subject to a minimum of $10,000 and a maximum
$100,000.

Group accidental death and dismemberment insurance is through The Hartford Group.

Health care professional liability insurance is through ProNational Insurance Company.
Limits are $1,000,000 per claim and $3,000,000 aggregate. Qur medical doctors and
paramedical employees are covered.

Medical insurance/prescriptions/dependant cov.crage is purchased through Blue Cross Blue
Shield of Michigan for employees working at least 30 hours per week.

Dental insurance is purchased through ADN for employees working at least 30 hours per
week,

Vision insurance is purchased through NVA for employees working at least 30 hours per
week.

Employees working at least 20 and up to 29 hours per week may purchase ISK’s medical
insurance/prescriptions/dependent coverage, dental insurance, or vision insurance at the full
premium cost.




VILa.

September
INTEGRATED SERVICES OF KALAMAZOO
BOARD POLICY V.02
AREA: Governance ,
SECTION: Executive Limitations PAGE: 10f2

SUPERSEDES: 09/26/2011

SUBIECT: STAFF TREATMENT

REVISED: (9/24/2012

PURPOSE/EXPLANATION

To define limitations of means regarding the treatment of staff.

POLICY

L With respect to treatment of paid and volunteer staff, the Chief Executive Officer
(CEO) may not cause or allow conditions which are unfair and undignified.
Accordingly, he/she may not:

A. Operate without written personnel related policies and procedures that:

L.

Clarify personnel rules for staff.

2, Provide guidance in the case of an emergency or disaster.

3. Qutline cleatr expectations that employees and candidates for
employment may not be judged on other than their own job-
relevant qualifications and/or job performance.

4, Protect the right to ethical job-related dissent of employees and
provide for effective handling of grievances.

5. Protect against wrongful conditions.

6. Protect health and safety.

B. Fail to:

1. Acquaint staff with personnel related policy and procedure, and their

rights under this policy.

2. Promote the recruitment and retention of personnel who reflect the

cultural/ethnic diversity of the community/population served.

3. Provide recognition of personnel, promote employee satisfaction and

demonstrate employee involvement in organizational decision making.

4. Ensure training and continuing development of all personnel to

enhance individual and organizational performance.

I1. This pelicy will be monitoted through internal mechanisms on an annual basis.




SUBJECT: V.02 Staff Treatment Pape: 2o0l2

CHIEY EXECUTIVE OFFICER APPROVED

Jeff Patton _ Erik Krogh
Chief Executive Officer Board Chair



INTEGRATED SERVICES OF KALAMAZOO
Staff Treatment Report
September 27, 2021

Executive Limitation Policy:

With respect to treatment of paid and volunteer staff, the Chief Executive Officer may not cause ot allow
conditions which are unfair and undignified.

Accordingly, the Chief Exccutive Officer may not:

A. Operate without written personnel related policies and procedures that:

1. Clarify personnel rules for staff.

2. Provide guidance in the case of an emergency or disaster,

3. Qutline clear expectations that employees and candidates for employment may not be judged on
other than their own job-relevant qualifications and/or job performance.

4. Protect the right to ethical job-related dissent of employees and provide for effective handling of
gricvances.

5. Protect against wrongful conditions.

6. Protect health and safety.

Response: Policies and procedures exist and guide all formal personnel action processes. Department heads,
supervisors and employees are aware of these policies. The Human Resource staff provides orientation for new
employees, offers training on specific issues and meets with various staff groups. Personnel policies and
procedures have been reviewed throughout the year and several have been revised where needed.

The agency experienced power ouiages in 2014 during which the Chief Executive Officer provided guidance
and which led to additional disaster planning/preparedness within the organization. The agency’s
Organizational Continuity Plan was reviewed and revised by the Senior Executive Team in the fall of 2016. The
plan was reviewed again in the spring of 2019,

Reaching the limits of the in-house maintained annuial performance review system, Directive Supervision
program, the agency switched to a cloud-based performance development system in 2017. ISK now uses the
SilkRoad performance appraisal tool. We have retained a core competency and value-based evaluation systen
in this transition.

The Employee Code of Ethics (formerly Ethical Code of Conduct) policy and proceditre was originally
approved in April 2000 and has been updated in March 2003, May 2004, March 20006, June 2006, January
2007, June 2007, April 2008, May 2010, November 2011, August 2012, November 2014, April 2016, June 2016,
December 2018, November 2019, and July 2021 upholding employee dignity and allowing emplayees fo express
an ethical dissent. There have been ng requests for ethical dissent over the past year.

There were no grievances swbmitted agatnst the Chief Executive Officer this reporting period.

B, Fail to: '

1. Acquaint staff with personnel related policy and procedure and their rights under this policy.

2. Promote the recruitment and retention of personnel who reflect the cultural/ethnic diversity of the
community/population served.

3. Provide recognition of personnel, promote employee satisfaction, and demonstrate employee
involvement in organizational decision making.

4. Ensure training and continuing development of all personnel to enhance individual and
organizational performance,




Response: New employees receive orientation, which includes covering information on the personnel policies
and procedures. Also, all personnel policies and procedures are provided to staff via the compuier network
(on-line) and updated as revisions are made. All emplayees are requived to sign a document verifying that they
are aware of these policies and procedures and have had an opportunity to read them. Annually employees
review the Employvee Code of Ethics policy and sign off that they have done so.

Language in job postings to encourage culturally diverse candidates fo apply was revised in 2011 based on
recommendations firom the Manager of Cultural and Linguistic Competency. All job postings that are
advertised outside of the organization and beyond free posting resources ave placed in the New Opinion
newspaper and written in Spanish. During the summer of 2016, we began running a regular ad in the New
Opinion newspaper divecting those interested in employment with ISK 1o view our current offerings on our
application website ensuring that ISK would have continuous exposure in this publication. Language fo
encorrage culturally diverse candidates to apply was also reviewed and revised in 2016. Job posting language
was again reviewed and revised to attract a more diverse applicant pool in 2019. Historical and current
demographic data is reviewed annually with ISK leadership.

The organization offers opportunities for not only employee recognition and satisfaction but also iraining and
development. ISK established a Morale Leadership Team and a staff recognition program (“You Make a
Difference” cards) in 2005. The staff recognition program has continued, and the Committee has morphed info
a Boosting All Agency Morale (BAAM) Committee. Employee surveys have been completed anvually since
2006, within these suiveys emplayee satisfaction is garnered along with recommendations for improvement. In
2020 it was decided (o begin conducting the emplayee surveys bi-annwally rather than annually, the next survey
will occur in 2021, In relation fo training and development, a Competency & Training Needs assessment was
conducted in November 2010. From the resulis of this data a training mairix was developed to identify various
resotrces offered to staff to improve competency. In addition, the Regional Workforce Training Committee that
was established in January 2012 has become an ISK focused Workforce Training Committee continuing fo look
at the mos! cost-effective as well as efficient ways fo offer opportunities to staff. In April 2015 an employee
development program was approved. The employee development program consists of two parts — beginning in
June 2015 employees took the DiSC assessment and are encouraged to complete Comparison Reports with co-
workers and department (raining on interpreting and using the results has been ongoing. The second phase Is
training staff in Crucial Conversations. Two ISK employees were irained as trainers and began to gffer classes
1o agency employees beginning in December 2015. Crucial Conversations has been offered quarferly since its
inception through 2019. As a majority of staff have atiended Crucial Conversations, the frequency of the course
offering has been rediuced.

This policy will be monitored through internal and external mechanisms on an ammual basis.

Response: The organization follows specific personnel policies pertaining to the treaiment of staff. Through the
employee survey and exit inferviews conducted when an employee resigns, the organization is able to monitor
staff opinion regarding their treatment.




VILb.

Seprember
INTEGRATED SERVICES OF KALAMAZOO
BOARD POLICY V.08
AREA: Governance
SECTION: Exccutive Limitations PAGE: lofl
SUPERCEDES:
SUBIECT: COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS
REVISED: 09/24/2012
PURPOSE/EXPLANATION:
To establish limitations of means regarding compensation and benefits.

POLICY:

L. With respect to employment, compensation and benefits to employees, consultant,
contract workers and volunteers, the Chief Executive Officer may not cause or allow
jeopardy to fiscal integrity or public image. Accordingly:

A. He/she may not:
1. Change his or her own compensation and benefits.
2. Promise or imply permanent or guaranteed employment.
3. Establish current compensation and benefits which deviate materially

from the geographic or professional market for the skills employed,

4, Establish or change pension benefits.

B. He/she may not fail to:
Ensure education is offered to all staff at least every five (5) yeats on the
pros and cons of opting out of Social Security and conducting a Siraw Vote
after the completion of the education sessions. 1f the Straw Vote is greater
than 50% to opt back into Social Security then an actual vote must be
conducted.

1L This policy will be monitored through internal and/or external mechanisms on an
annual basis.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER: APPROVED:;
Jeff Patton Erik Krogh

Chief Executive Officer Board Chair




INTEGRATED SERVICES OF KALAMAZQO
Compensation & Benefit Report
September 27, 2021

Executive Limitation Policy:

With respect to employment, compensation and benefits to employees, consultant, contract workers
and velunteers, the Chief Executive Officer may not cause or allow jeopardy to fiscal integrity or
public image.

Accordingly, the Chief Executive Officer may not:
A. Change his or her own compensation and benefits,

Response: The Chief Executive Officer is compensated according to his negotiated contract with the

Board. Further, he receives the same benefits as other employees of ISK. No change in the Exectifive
Director’s compensation outside of Board approval has occurred, nor has any benefit been changed
excepi any that may have involved changes fo all emiployees.

B. Promise or imply permanent ot guaranteed employment.

Response: Specific personnel policies and procedures have been implemented to ensure that all
employees are treated equally. The policies clearly sef forth the conditions of employment; these
include initial offers of employment and continued employment. Supervisors, the Chief Executive
Officer and the Human Resource Departiment all work together io enforce these policies. There have
been no promises or implications of permanent or guaranteed employment,

C. Establish current compensation and benefits that deviate materially from the geographic or
professional market for the skills employed.

Response: A new salary schedule was implemented in December 2009 that was the resulf of an
evaluation of each position, consultant input and market survey data. In October 2011, a market
survey was conducted fin conjunction with a consultant which resuited in market adjusiments for
posifions that were identified as greater than 10% below markei as well as a modest increase to the
salary schedule. A market survey was conducted of key positions in 2012 and resultant salary
adjustments were implemented in October 2012, Key positions continie 1o be reviewed and resulting
recommendations for salary adjustmenis are made. Participation in and review of Community Mental
Health salary survey occtrs as they are conducted. In September 2016, a market survey was conducted
in confunction with a consultant which resulted in market adjustments for positions that were identified
as greater than 10% below market as well as a 10% increase to the lower bands of the salary schedule
and a 5% increase to the higher bands of the salary schedule and staff salaries were adjusted
accordingly as needed. Also in 2016 a bonus program was developed for agency prescribers
(Psychiatrists, Physician Assistants, Nurse Practitioners) and implemented in 2017. In 2017 ITS
salaries were all reviewed and adjusted according to recommendations from a consultant. In FY 2018
sdentified positions were reviewed and resulting recommendations for salary adjusiments were made
Jor positions such as Registered Nurse and Supports Coordinator Assistant. In FY 2019 we evaluated
Masier’s level clinician’s in salary band C 1, Clinical Supervisors and Contingent Direct Care
Specialists. While we had some positions slated to be reviewed in FY 2020, the uncertainty that came
with COVID-19 usurped that. The salary schedule was increased by 1% at the beginning of FY 2021,




Salary ranges were again fncreased by 1% at the begirming of FY2022. In May 2021 Master’s level
clinicians and clinical supervisors received a 9-10% market increase fo make our wages more
competitive. Agency Peer Family Support Pariners and Direct Care Specialists moved up one salary
band as well.

D, Establish or change pension benefits,

Response: We participate in the Kalamazoo County Retirement System and as such are bound by its
terms and conditions. Quarierly meetings are held with the County to disctiss and review the
retirement system. Our belief is that the current retirenent system is jfinancially very strong and of
greal benefil to our employees.

The Chief Executive Officer may not fail to:

A. Ensure education is offered to all staff at least every five (5) years on the pros and cons of
opting out of Social Security and conducting a Straw vote after the completion of the education
sessions. If the Straw Vote is greater than 50% to opt back into Social Security then an actual
vote must be conducted.

Response. A Straw Vote was conducted on August 17, 2011, Only 17% of the eligible voters voted to
go back into Social Securify. Therefore, a sanctioned vote did not fake place. A Straw Vole was
conducted on August 11, 2016, Again, only 17% of the eligible voters voted fo go back into Social
Security. Therefore, a sanctfioned voie did not take place. A Straw Vote is scheduled for September 21,
2021.

This policy will be monitored through internal and external mechanisms on an annual basis.

Response: The organization follows specific personnel policies pertaining to the status of employment
and salary/benefit administration. Through annual bid solicitations on benefits and condiicting
periodic salary surveys, the organization strives lo maintain a fair and competitive overall
compensation and benefit package for all employees.




[Xa. Financial Condition Reports {July 2021 and August 2021}



bl il

t

Stk

nolyueyy

-wodas siy; Bupueios suopsanb Aue asey nof pmoys [LPE-955 18 SIneg
34 10 DOBS-HOL I8 UCRB o4 JORJUOS 01 32U (99) 2989 *6L1 WOH SSIDULS ROy Ie {U00U SOIZL-WY 02101} L1202 2 Iquiapdog 00 Peinpayos §) Bunsswt BaNIUILIOD SIUBLE XA auy

%EF DL Z5EBLS $iZ'58 198118 S[EI],

%000 I5VEf od I9L'e$ Burple) oo

%00 L5 STTEE §T'LS 05 TS umiy J2d pieeg
A SIUBUEA [ Bbong

{300k 180re] ) samAnSe praog o} pajeNal Sanmipusdys jBmde pue patabinng lawassd Jo) :ep o) Jeak oy snasaidar Bamolpe) st STHNLIGNSDR GR1VTTY RYVOE ¢

*0E02 L6 AIRP U] RTE'EE7LT4 O PRIRduIoT 5EZ'SYE 0RS JO YLOM 19U
eAQIS0d € 10} ZIPESE'00S S18 SYRIGEN (R0} PUR 190K LSS ST SS5SE O] SIHSER 19U SAISOd SIS 195YS SIURIER PUsENE ML INOLLYENGIMOD S13SSY L3N} 133HS S0NYIVE T

‘B2 ‘b MNP 1o S8 666'c8'01s o3 paredwoo

299°67Z° )15 Buyses |e3ides Buppom sapsod & Jo) 756'2r1 0T34 1530} S0P Q8] JUBWIND DUR $1.9°8RC" 26 [E301 SI9SSE JUSLND "SRRYIGE! JUILIND J9N0 HESSR JERLIS 10 enpea Juedyubs 2 st alog
“fo1iod Daeos asd BY LZOT i Anp o 82 nopenuebic S1R JO UORIPUCT [HISUELY JRIGAG SUI SIIONIS 195U SOUEIRE PRdeR SUL  (NOLVINSNGD TrLidrd ONDHEOM) 1TEHS SONYTYE 'L

YOL'6IOZP  I9LPOVIS POMRIRg PUNZ PUY SSIMAGEN (201 FOLBIBTY LRIYVDY LS SPssy L
Lieers 1ZE'0L8 PoLiad 18 (SSO[UTEE 18N
EOESEL'Y YO L¥E Y SIISTE PN U JUeWIson
£50518'Y AL gor 4l paleuBREpUr
865'P05' L LEY0IODL panpofisag .
Bouetey pund
LIE9900T  Tiv'Ess'oe iSepIpgen (2101 .
{hopnG pauseR o 1eu)
LI EIST MYy | (eSefuopsspuog) qag wiaL Guc 508°185°8 Z60°LES Y yessy UISUSd 18N
{uogeinasdap yo 1ou)
8L §EELOTY SNUBABY PRLRIHQ §59°9ET6 L80°G20'6 Rassy patd
079'260°L LE6TRLLL FHRG € BNg ISESTY JUELITIUON
HLtar’s Ll N BARST ERMISY BEILEL gap'grel SPiialg pus SACUBADY
185205 1E5'85 SIAplATIY 0 Ang sg 02301 Sjepg w0l ang
195°C4 (RA ws-3 8 Y= 01 ang 150°9z9°L JEOLEE'D  SOMIBAROMLMANILBAGY REIY
8z0'608"s seEBlLL SRIGBAEY PENIGY BleLES'ER a5 ' S3LRUASAAL| PUR LSBT
saae) 1Sjessy pRLnD
026l Ad 1Z/0T A3 061 Ad VLOZ Ad

"$20Z ‘LE Mrpe puE 0Z0Z ‘1§ Alor Bujpue poued lof 1eaYS BoUElED

~BAmnos Duipun; AQ FRMAIIE JRIPURLY 43

PR yoneZiehio JU) JO UONIPUOS EIDUBLE [|E18AC JUSLIND ) BUnen|eAa o) praniss uonenonn Anyabong naunsad futohue splacsd o) pajussasd st sanes) [BIduedls jo Areununs Gumo)io) sy,

SINTWALVIS TVIONYNID MSI~ SNCLUYAAZSTO TrdINID v

T P10 343 SINa90 J0U) CoufA HOTS] S 11 PRoT)e] SITHIpE

“weboad Ag
SPuas BIABPUSTXS PUR SNLIRAASI JO SUCTISIPLL MM PIEDg a1 Sapiaodd piodal Ayuow sty) "samppuades pue Sonuaads pajedonus o} se pamamal 51 18Bpng 1Ienuuee pajeslord s urerfioad ysex

*120Z 1518 A Ybnoal 383 Jaqarag 30 poned Bl Jo) sucheaede JO YUOW (0} U6} 1) SesAIde. Bode SIYL

TICMER04

1202 “1€ e
PEpuS SiquUl 101} UL 3UE Jod
LAOSEY NOLKINGD TWIONVNIE GHvoa
OOZRANEIRY 10 SHIAIIE BRG]



xsprapodey 20-1207 z K 0ZZ1ZaT/848

‘suoiysod Ui o} SNP JTRIOAB) B FEURA SIL nT
“usipsod JEdRA B 9 eNp BREKME] 51 SUBLRA SILL =4
SROAGS WRANY PUE UCKRLIFUCOS Rolues pue spoddng pasegeuinid vl upusde paseamap o 3D 51 aRmues SIYL V2

Wi peue dee 20 sanby pRRipng Loy H0D00LS ONY %6 Supsemm ssaurues, A simpuede A ssueiaia JGRIOAR] pue Sgekis Siusaidal
St atr). 0rg 2RY 2 Asietiseudde £q uopmod SigRISAR] (R Ui SR sermmIetys *AREenbesic) OES'SATTHS JO SRIpUSEYd paabeng of pareduwies 010°2/9°06E AIE poUEd (01 RU0W LR} Sy SOl FRRURdRE  ISEUNLIANSSE

OE"SE0"L L AG PRSERIN| 2 PINOW WRALBMSS HEWMS SLIU0N SIUl 196’ /£6'es Aq 1Beng repun up aumo ssnanal SN HEWME PUE 095'889'28 Aq S|0RIong; S8 S35URdRS ASR) HEWANS #2US »n
PRASIR! SN [EIG0E O SNP oS SKEIone) Le Ul 8t Sausi)| Skeanmed SHHOW g1

‘PANGTE) SPUNCUIE [EIeE o) ang uoisod SRBIOARL 8 ULS] Shlanss PR ¥l

mofsg pauizide aie sanby peEbpng Wl 00D'O0LS ONY %S Supasxe seoulRy, “adfi) shuaiis fq SSOUBUEA SITEICATS-IN PUR S{JEICAE] STuSS0ida)
Besinafio) UL ‘Ope gny'zs Aaipuixoidkie Ad vogisod siqrioaRpun @ Uy sie sanlana! ‘Apusnbesuasy [0os' S9E st iC Senuanas puabphy o paueduwdd 020°./9'008 #q ) pepalaid &ie popad (01} YIOW USE BU) IO} SEASY BINNRATY

TIETHOAYSND = SOQLNAN SAREREN | TTRVMOAYS = SRGLION SASTT JWN0D FIRLEA LD 30N

] : - o - 0 - o - 5 0 o {11430 IWOIM L3N
BEIBED'SL O¥5 BE5T BRILID0S 085°898E0 | LB 5L SROTO9Y  &QTloLY | 68 vslY LEL'CO/F | SS06LE 15 B€) LZ8 25 smuadag Eo ]
< - - B - - - - - - sainypusadxg NPy HOCHUON
SLY'LLE azfelezel pes'es [FAN: -] - - . seb'eY sor'0s [ g1 ¥o.09L lajjayg sESRWaH
ZLE'BZE'e £89'LT POT'08s"y 426" 105 - - =laieg=tiod osl'ake | #rifiee a'ive ZR5'Si8's 0E8'LEE'S batST) SSEI0Y USHEIEILLEY D pefeuRiy
L6E'9ES'T %z | evToe VTECPEL AL LT - fE9 - - Zz'ene TE8'58E PESOFSL £59'ETLL NG wiRsH psjesbag
ZE1150'1E 1Z+'698'L BOB'BIEET GEE'508°5T . . Tyt 552'L07 S85'epa'sT 020'504°5C sueliosd ook
VER'ERLYE (rz'20g) 0L £TE'L0T | L8 A% - - 240'+86'E rasesse | 1es'cer'e THD LIPEL T T
SLLBLE'EL WE | eee Lvs BRE"LELE LZFELEL - - b 5181 Y - - 2H0'ELE'S BYT' YER'S sweboug upha
SHRNUNIE
SSY'BED'SL (o+S'pEe'z} OLEA49'09 0SS'S9E'SH | L4 ZIE'L L 580209y £0E' 280 | g8E'YSL'Y PECPEL Y ] SE0'GLE'LS RLETYEE 2InUBNEY 191
G¥s 2155 ; - Lk 26 HPE L# (eerTeg) | L90 (66] [GIGSI0¥%  IGSL UBLES {1690 999 9) BVS GEP b (EsuRtha) NN JURHUGIHES
5611 BEZ'CE 26226 - - - - - - WD R ANS
LLoer's - - L2s'eet's 821852’ - - SNUENIL WEINY
8LETST'0L - - BES'0LL'S BEEre's - - anweasy ueBiLony Aueey
086" 208 - - 555267 059'85T seaz
oo0's1L - - - - - - Z60°/LT ££8'35 BANUAOLY SBAFNS0S SHHON
920 BEY'e0 yi | sus'2rr's LENPIY IS LEE'IEC'ES - - - - - - SERIYIC 169'150°35 ShuaAaL PRSP SRSIIRS ARieds
1sBpng LYY =TT [ WhEnE BRY WP By BIpng (== Whang e wabprg SINNATE
V20T Ad SRIOL WRIS 300HT G113 WISErTY ueBrom AR SEHAES LyERalS
SFEQ) D1 I8 108 WAL ST

STUNIANS X3 GNY SINNSASY GIVOICSR © INSWSOYNYIN YR TVIONYNI HE IAAS &



Xspesuodey L0-1Z0T < Wd 02212028 HE
"SHHGIN 91 Wwnjel s{qrssod e 0} 8N S; SoUBMEA SIUL Qe
AUSRI3 SUL J0) IBD SNANBUEY §O WRIHOId P JSYBUS AluE] JO LOGRZIN PESBRUOLL 0F 9NE S1 30UBUEA ST o€
JURIE) S0UBISISSY [FueY AusRiaiug QIACD Pue JuRID yoranng Buisnop JuRg suohsisuRl) AESH YSHINYS WRID 2UeD J0 wkaks YSHINYS e Bulumel)
WIWBEUS RRURE TUBID) JOIEBINGN URISIOA ‘WRID UORUSASID SPIDING YEHINYS WRID luswAow paucddng wSHWVS 30 40} Buipuadsiapun ¢ snp ABuRId §) BIUBLIEA SIU | g
"‘DRAAKEDE] EJURCWLIE [EMOE OF 8NE S| SUSLIRA S we

A

BLr oL 1o

BBLL1LY
Y58 6T
ZELBROL
160861 'EL
0882E0°L
1Eg'ees
BFEEEE
corepe's
BEQLIE

L850 LT

088'gg
000'01
HOO'EsY
00F'05% L
noo'el
DER'S/Z
000'er
EOE'EYE'L
BYrS 86
£18'155T)
R x-xorA
(e 4=10
188'g8/e

wbpng

LE/0T Ad

"MO[SC PISTAURPE ale saunby pejebnng Woy 000'02¢ ONV %5 Buipeaara seousuen adfy snuans) Aq S9UBLEA JGRICAR-UN PUE BiqEIoAE; sjuasaide DumoNos oYL "LI8°88L TS
fmewxcidde Aq uogisod 9[QRIOAE-UN UB UL 9IE SenusAsy ‘ARusnbasuoy £0S'2H0°RLE 40 Senuane) pagalpng o) paedwion G2 0LE'5LS o pouad (G1) (luows usy sy sag sanuansy TSANNIATH

H¥
S
iy
g
ar

ar
¥

ae
ge

YE

SHON

TIWHOAYNG = Sequiny sagelsn S18vHOAY = SISGUINN SAJISO [ULNj0D) SOUBLEZA UG 0N

£L9°80T LEE'DIG e 0o LIB'ELS STP'LEE 15895 L Bee'es
NGE V6 2 868'6EG L OPEIBT /) | ZAGERSCL ST PPl | S0Z'LS0'Z EOTEFE
o EZePLE ZerLE T8 PLe €8'rlG - -
51 1'eg) #98°SEE SyLIFT 20T'FEE S¥2'LFT 955°¢ -
(rle'or) LIS FLE b AR Gi¥'gLe 256'218 ZFEL0L 298'p%
BBE'L85'L $88'LLY'S £FT'BEE0L | SE9Tvse's B£9'08F0L | BEL'TOS SAG'8LS
SP8S g68'Z08 ZrL'0o8 295'999 G15'7¢9 lge'eel 1Ze'ize
18i'gre Zee'Liy BS8'6EL 69LTLL TLELLL £26'85S 2208
&6+1'26 yit'282 £TO¥IE L19'FBI 25L8LL £oR it ogv"avL
L52'BL0°L £52'99/'L 00782 785 L10°L £8G'ZEL’L Ker. 417 12¢°958°t
$80'0R T8L'6LL 998'652 wZT0B g10'eTL gog'6e o200 2
(lzg'gEs'2)  SZZ'0LE'SL  SOS'BPO'SL ) E9B'EOL'EL Li9'5Ee'rL | £95°202° Zeg'eel'e
GL5'681'L) (G5'68) L) - - - QG621 L) -
{80ty 851t 202'2L 8L 1L BOZZL - -
(618's) 0 A €528 5 £68'8 - -
s PESDLF PESOLP S0P PEROLP - -
- 00026t Qon'ese’'L 00026zl QO0‘ZBE' L - -
{880’01} g EL'El ¥e'e £Le'sh - -
£8%'91 089 VP Z61'8EE 088'¥FT T81'8TT - -
{orr'v1L) EE L2 £28'st ree'Lz seg'se -
SlLE'ETL SEP'E0Y'L eEL'esT'L SEF'60F'L 9gL'982'L -
{Z¥5's) SI¥'ELY 186'318 SIt'sle 266818 -
{gov'seg’l}  gigcen'd FFE'SSF Ol | 4TSS el - -

- ok n A J - - £F8'FiY BTl
(g82'52) oFQ'sZL 28051 - - or'sST) £58'05E
{1} gEL'iZL'E asy/Zi'e - - ggL2Z1e 95LizZL'e

NI BTy Tebpng ey whpng o 1ebpng

S[E¥0L seanog Bupung BYO pur Jelauss; 8E15

18] 0 188 LZHTIESN 1BOSIE

{L103430) IWOINI LIN

ssusteg ol

UmoDARI YIERLY 18207

HAYBUG SSSIPWIOH

StRIg) gNH

SpusIg) 8215 PuR [RRp34 JBULD

JHURD STy UOIENSILILDY auel pafeusyy
AT GlewH palesbe]

sweiBold vaar

sLEiBoid N

sweioig Yinag

‘SFUNLHINIJA3

ISBNUSAIY 901
{ssuadxy) anusAsy JUSLISNAS
Jsaml| pRENISeY

SLONBUO

snuansy 2o

uonesoly HUnog

IR

swesbold YHa0MYSSYd
anuBnsy Y00

SNUSATY PELIE]

LAY QNH

SIUEID) SIEIS DUE fRlRpad SO
02, pERIciAUED J9 pajpelold
s=34

pun [RISLSE)

|INMIANGY

SIUNLIONI XS GNY SINNIATY - IONVTVE GNNd GEIORLSTUNA : ININIDVNYI HSIM TVIONYNIS Y §]



xspespodayg 201202 ¥ Kd O TET0TE IR

JRYBUS AUR JO UDHRTININ PRSIt 0} AND 51 SIUBLEN §H) Yy
“FERA feash SNSIeA Jeah el Jeyl pue SUelE g o4 Jop Fouessip Duny Sl o] SN St SIURIRA SI | oy
sy SoUesissy ey Aswslinug
GIAQD PUB WRI9) WBRANE Buisnoy JUels suosstsuel| AUieeH YEHAVS JUBIE) AR 10 WAIAS wSHINV'S e Dunie:) Juswfeuep waeg RIRn

A0RBINeN LRI TR0 UOIUSALY 3PRINS YSHINYS ‘WUeig jawiodusz pepeddng YSHINYS 94t 4q; Bupusdsiapun o) shp Aiewud | sauspes sji | ¥
BEGINGD 195 SISUBES O] SNP S| SJUBLBA SIE| E

"5I0IS JUAKRANG PEIENGR-UOLE JC UCREZIEN JSO] 24 O} NP 5] STUBLEA I g

“spoddng APURUALDD PUE S187) RUDSIS 10} Pty IISUSS) 10 5 PISERNIP B 0] 3Np Sl 2ausUEA SIUL o

JuspedU; IS PUB SONASS JSBd UCRBRIOGD

UG PR SLOAANS “TUSeR) | ALRINWLIOT SANISSSY ‘Sanalas Bl Afunwiznos) pue e [BUOSIS J0 UOEZIN J&nd| B Of 8np S| S3UBURA S L b4
‘uoHRuIPI00] pue spaddng pue JusnEdl) S1G IQ USEZIAN PRSBAIISP OF SNP §] S3UBLEA LI v
wwoeg paueihe e

sanBy parefpnq Loy o00'0es aNY % Bupsanxs sacusiea ~2df] anpuadse A SSOUBLEA S|GRIOAE-UN PUB SIRIONR; stusalds) Bupioges L 056" +6'28 AsieLupoidde Ag wonsod
SIQRIOAE) 2 Ut 310 SasMpuSdxs "Agusnbasuon eke’ £36°/ 1§ 10 saunnpuadxa pajebpng o) paledwiod §8'6E9'rLS SUE pousd (01L) WIUCWE W) S Jo3 Samppuedyy  STUNLIGNISIXE



T by R gy 3 . ) [t

‘nek yueyy
poda sip Bupaefar suonsanb Aue saBYy NOA PINCUS L10B-565 I8 SIAEQD
1R 10 OOES-YEE B UGHES BOF KIRUCD 0] D3 [O68) I5ERId GEL WO0R BAURIMUOD ‘WO I8 (200U 00:ZI- W'Y 0305} JT0T E2 $29040Q S0} PRMpeySe 51 Buneaw sauneoD sousld el s

g1 202°LLS -525"14 £0RTLS £[egot

%ST0 2S0°0LS 428 £20°0L% Buumn) pieeg
$SETE 08718 00614 06128 weaig 13g pieog
% EETETErY M3y 3Bphg

“in 001 1661E1) SamAne pEag 03 PRI sanypuadie SR pue palafipng J8qWeDS(] s03 SIEP o) TEBA Sy siwesasde Bumolo) sl "SINEIANSSE GH1Y TSN quvoa E

“OT0C '3E IS Y U1 2080467128 0 pasediWoD LK0'080°02S J0 Yiom Jou
SAmISOd B 40) SOU'GES'LES SR SARMIGRY (210} PUR DS0'SSY'TS Alt ISSE o) "SISSSE JAU saqsod SIDS|IA) FASES SOUBIEY PayDEre duL  “(NOILVINKWOD SISV 130} 13FAHS IONYIVE T

. “0Z0Z “LE ySIERY 20 SE BLGZOR'0ES o paredwoa QL5808 LES
Burimor jepdes Guppom BAmSOd B 10§ Z6, TLL 7S [E301 SHIGE] JUALNG PUE Z11 2P RS 1RI0E SIAEER WAL, SSRINEY JUALIAD JAAC SISSSE JURLNG JO 8NJEA WEDLIUD]S & 55 Jaqt “Rotjed
pieog 15d By “[Z0Z "LE1SNBRY JO SE UOREZINEDI0 24) JO UORIPUGD [RIFUEUY EISAD S) 519012 J00YS aouejeg POLOERE Silf  INOLYANINGD TV.AIIVD DNIMHOM) 1E2HS JONVTIVE T

1690022y DS0'6SPLS SIUTEg PUNS DUB SSTRINCRTT [RI01 159°00L°2¢ Qo0'EoP'ZS RIESY [WHOL

SPESIE e 0L POUSg 0} [SSONUIED 1B
soe'sel'y PO LRy SIDESD pAXE U IUBURSHAL)
FH5LRY EIS'ETE'S peEUbESpUn
SESPOREE  BEPOLATOL pelEuiS30)
BuRied pund
sse'ezror cna'sss’ls SERQIRQEI'T 101
. {swopno pausap jo Jai)
z8'e1a'b LATSLEY {sfefuonmspued) e uwag Sun COL"LES'D Z60'I86'p TESSY LOISUA Jan
{ucspepaidap o 1)
£55°69 0ET oY snusAY palaeQ LETS0T6 2P’ S}SRY paxy
we'een's BT s 01 3ng 151055V JIBLITIUON
bi'eor’) 98 LIE'} RABD PHLOTY 809'62L L 980°022'1 spiedelyg PUE SaCURADY
208" 99095 slapw0lg 0 30Q) (1} ] 2B WAl S0
85r'LL -y a-i e oy a0 093'5p1'2 0RC'6HY Y SMARAIRDARISIUIADY DBFUOOY
yoa'sklL LBBIT L SoKpEARd panooy Z9T'500°CT SreZIETE SISLLISBAU} DUE USED
16BGIIGETT ISRETY WRRRING
el Ad bZIZ A 0T/6L A LZ0T A4

“LZOZ "1¢ 1enboy puR (202 *1¢ snBny Gulpua posad 10} JFAE ARG

~saunos Buipung Ag SBRIARDE tESvewLY 1
S HOREZIIREIO 21 40 LOQIPUOD [BIIUBUY [JBIIA0 FALINS i) Sukenieaa o) |esgus sogeuon fueyebpng Jusunsed tuwbuo antacud @) pajtasaxd 51 senest ([RIANELY 30 Lewmns Buponoy sUl

reesBosd Aq
SPUAT SHIPUGCNS PUE GNUSAR JO RIOGEIIPU! YW BIEoY 2yl Sapiod podar AIGUOW SIE) “SAMyPpUREXs PUR Senueam peedionue of se pamaaal ) 3a8png |enuue paposioud sueiboud el

20T I54¢ Wnbny yBnamn 151, 00550 J0 Boted 4 1o} SUDRRISUO J0 O {} |} usAss s sjueshIda podes SiuE

THOMIY0I

L2702 "Lt 33nbny
pepLE suruoly (L) vsaB]T g o]
180478 NOILIAROD TYIONYNID QuvDd
SO 10 SRS peeiBepy



zspospoday 21202 Jo Adoo

hd BZ:21E02/1 56

stofEd JUEEA O) SNRp JHIRIOAR) 5] SOUBNRS SAL
wofysnd JBImA B 0] S0 HEEIOAR] & BRI 82]]

JEALAOKHIIDT PaRoddns PUE UORBURLID SeE pue Spoaddng Semnsas wrabold Juspadanul pepodking Bugpng IS W S50 hosERnap 6] AN ualsod a)geicAEs & Ut 51 suraiboid W

'SEOIAS WSTHNY PRI UOBBUIRICOS a0l e saddns 'poseasiloM U Burirsds peteoioop of s ¥ Sees 1]

J8RR

a0l paulEidxs aie samnby talalphd WO DO 0RLES GNY Nt BUpaasde sToueme ) adf anspuadra £Q SEOURIRA SITRIOARL PUR SlOS/OAR) sjissandel
Bupnonop SyL 779'v0STE AuBLIxoIdde £ wopised akislons] e Ul Sae Ssanppuadis “SRUAnbasU0g "B0L'T0.LEEE J0 SaInpUadis poBpRg o) parediias | 260 AGE SME POPSE (1 1) LU UaAB[3 BUY o) SaNPUBdT  STUNLIANDIE

GEZ'GEDTL AQ PASERUILY B BINOA WRUBLE HEWANS SULOW B} £29° 1LS0'ALE A 120N SE0 U} BUED SANUIA X1 HENAS PUB ZZ0'P00°2% AQ SHRICAE] ME SIEURDD #5I HEINMS S3UIg oL
PRARSES SINOUE BTISS OF BOR UORSOH MIRIAATS LB U1 51 SAGUaS] MU0 SHEKGN at
“PRARCAL SRANDILE [BIOE O] NP UONS0d BKPEIOAS; | Ut 51 @NUBAZI PIEJINEN Wi

. o peeredos e sanby DegRbang Woul 000" 001 S ONY %65 Supesam saqueies “adi; anuesss Af SaotBUR INGRIGAR)-UN UE S|YEIOAR] sjussalde:
Suvnaiay Ayl “ZZ9't09Es Appautadiiz A usiicnd sjgmioses-in 2 Ui e samuasal Mpuanbatuoy ‘g0l ‘202 682 10 SENUSAR) PRIRENg 03 pRIedusos Le 160°10% 24 O pReaind 2B povad (1 1) WO UaAsR U)K Sanuakay S3NNSASH

TAYVHOAYAND & SEQUIN SATE0oN 'STIVHOAYS o SIBAWNN BRSO LN SRIRA U0 SN

7} ) - [ [0 [ a a (U233 IROINI 13N
[N Z2ep082 LRFIE02S T0Lo0i6S | ShIL Tep el ElOou0E  Op0rhe & | PoB 1P S BIFete s | CIOPii e BOL 50 65 s RIDL
- - - < - - - - - - saumppusdg ARASY HOGHION
oLa'LLe a2 | seoseE 89025 160'582 - - - - 105°81 L 501°88 1ea'saL BBUS SEBEMOH
Zig's2c’s algds cHR0S0'S GLLSS0's - 60288 SO5'Z9L | 859'P6E 1e9'ZeE wI'TY €ILSIEP  pRIUSD SSI00W UDHRASRILLDY aieD pabasiy
2E8'5ES'Y 5T | L5E'0ET 1E2'PE0'T BS'EZE'R 669 - - sheree wgezy | s2ieors) B10'E65'L D e paieuia)
26818048 g2 | LonEst TSERVE'ST LETDO5'RT - - - SLEFL ¥ag'Lee HIWUTR LAeTeT sumaboly o)
PEREBLPE {26805 2LV 188 SLOLLLET | RS T 1 - 1ZEYF Ly | 208 ShLAS'R sweiborg vIv
ELEBETL YE | 558665 sLLsrLaL pLrwrELl | - " sg'eyy  suoeR¥ | - - BOS20'D sg0'tob'n SRS YINOA
SFHNLANILNS
455 Be0 SInUSKa 0L
mwwtm.w 2 {asvaibig) anuansy weuapes
258'bEE - W WA A0S
LTSRS ' y y 0 Sy WY
glzzER oL » : - - - ablianey LEBHEIN Apeal
oBs I0% y y ; - - g 3 . saag
0D0'SLL ! . _ - 5 g SARURRIL) XS0 S SHHAW
CTan YLy ) v aaTste USIELEY  999EILE - - 85°288'C9 99E°rET 28 SLUBASY PIESIPSY S3aMag Aepedy
wipng saon | eueven ] eBpng Ty wopng Ry e = wgang [EC="g WERNg SEANEAT
12407 AJ SERL WEIS 15018 NG wepny ueSnony Kyt seateg Agepads
SEQ 01 Jea ) | 0T = [EdeLd

STUNLONINE ANV SINNIATH GivDI0SH - INSWEOUNYIN S TRONYNIZ HEINMS @



xspespoday go-1.262 1o fdao ¢ Wd BT ELTOTITH
"SHHOW 93 Wi ajqssod B O} anp S couRLRA ST ac
Jpepi s do) SUBDY SASNOUI-Y 10 WRiSald PUR Jajjeys AILEd 10 UCHEZIGN DRSBEUTIA O] 8NP ST SUBLBASRIL . O
JURISD) SOURISISSY [EjUay ADusBiBUy QIAQD PUR WRIS Yoreang Suisnoy| 1o suogsisuRy] AEIH YSHINVS ‘TRl 2120 10 WEAS wSHINYS ‘e Sumies)
wawBsuEy WwaB RIS JORGASN URISIOA JUBIS) UONUAARIL SPNS WSHINYS JURKD) Jusurioldurg papoddng wSHIgY'S o4 0} Buipusdsrepun of enp Auzuiid 51 souBpeA sy, ge
TEAS09) SIUNDILS NS ) NG SI SMBUEA SIY ] Ve

“m0iaq passaippe a8 samby paebpng wWoy 000'0Ze ONY %5 Duipeacze SaoueyuRA "adk) SRUSKE! A SSOUBLEA BjEIGKELIN Due SjORIoAE) Sitadsidan Supmonol sul Zer'B2s 28 AdsUgxadde
A UOTISAG SiqRIOARI-IN UE Ul 832 Sanuaks: “AJUSRBASUND "E4'CSR'SLS 1O SanueAat palefipng o) parediucs 110°5Z1 214 i pouad (11) YUCLI UBABIS BU} JOJ SBNUBASY  STNINIA3N

S08'255

81¥'501°1Z

SR LG
PEZ'262
zeL'ern’)
LB0'661'E1
068°ZE0°L
Leg'eos
2PE'63E
SOP'PpE'e
Beg'LIE

HY

E 4
3

aoF
arF

£2E'e68'1e

059'98
ooo'oL
LGB
DoF'D8S'L
000'sL

1 oee'es2
o00'eh
£OE'EPS')
QY106
£L8°LSE'TL
1S6°8LE
000°181
95'zes'e

QL

Bbpng

LZ/0Z AJ

SSON

IIGVHOAY NG = SIaqunp SAReBeN 'TIFVHOAY = SISQUNN SANIS0 TULNGY BOURLIBA 110 Sj0N

G52 81 E0'0.L 028908 080'2e8 205°61Y PEE'LLE FETaT]
B0°CZE'T LT60EYel  feoekeel | eZgIeow 0208998l | 8BOEREC £95 /J0E
! S0E'998 90E'09% S0E'00% 08008 - -

(z1e'81t) 8£R'068 0ZS'ELE £PZ'63E 025 TLZ EB5°1 -

(266" Lo} 06Z'C00'L 28¢'196 12e'6e8 262006 695ELL sgb'g
gea'Zee’L LIS'08.0F 29168021 | 298'61004 Syl'8ZSLL | E¥SSh. ZZ¥ 05
STl Lrs'bog aLS'oPs L2B'8ES 202'883 028431 605052
85°187 9oL IS She'18d Piraawdl 80L'8ZL 8£2'588 otL'2og
Z65'LLL THE'SPT 880258 SGL 851 €20' 261 GECEY FATags:1H
25590l iPHE56L 50.'590'¢ == Zra'sre’L wleze £oR'518'}
SL8°0LL LEBPIL 259°G9Z BEL'OE ZLO'EEL 981'¥8 SEEEsL

{2eb'Rzs o) LIO'SEL'AL  $9b'Essl | 616'608'YL sETaRO'al | 250'655'2 &27'c0.

{esv'oaL’'lt)  {gEromLL) - - - [CETATTRN] -

{osy) 626'82 BZP'EL als'es g2¢'al -

{zoc'0) $097 29L'6 092 20L'8 -

a BB VSF 816451 8L8'LSY BLE'LsY -

- o0z LZP L T IZFL o0z L Ze'L 00Z't2F'L - -
{82¢"11) 68T¢ 189'pL 6gz'e 298" - -
{1} ¥oL'8k2 LLO'IST YoL'6¥2 L40'EST - -
{aaz'al) ZZL'EZ Lv'ee ZZL'ET LLP'8E - -

LTV 9.8'55¥1 SPirip'L 2.3°65%'t SrLvLE'L

{18511} LZE'BRS 262'008 LZe'eed £69°008 - -

(F8E'135°L)  SvP'bER's 6Z8'S05'LE | S¥PPEE'S 629'505'1 1 - -

- LEVESE 129851 - - lev'est Pa il
(ree'sz) ERZ'SEL 216'68] - - E82'0EL 2658l
()] LLE'BEr'S Lig'EEr'E - - 12E'8EFE LIRBEP'S

ESTETTY By Tobpg By @bpng By 1aBpng

SFEI0L gaomag Buipun Jalgo pund rauag seg
aler] 9 JBS ) L2/07Ea4 120s/H

SIUNLITINIIXKI OGNV SINNINATE - IONVIVE ONND ZLORLSTRNN

* INGWSDVYNVIN SR TYIONYNK Y §] 2

{(LIDIS30) SNOONE 13N

sasuachay oy

UMOPMEI] UTIEp [eoo]

RIS sSASWCH

SUelDy g

SURIS) SIE}S PUE |e10pas J8RD

IR SS90V UOHERSIIIRY aueD pebeuepy

SUED e pepifisu)
swbord vaagl
SWIElBos 4 Wil
swibold oA

BEFENLONSEXT

SSONUBASE [BOL

{as.adx3) snuassy lUBLSRIES
JsaUBL PEOLSSY

stuenEueL]

SNUSADYM (B3]

UOREINNY Aunon

1T

swelbold YHaOAYSSVd
snuaady ¥30D

aNuansy] paiiles]

SnUSAT GNH

SRSy MWEYS PUR JRISpe JARD
02, pEMOMALRD J9 paydsfind
5684

pung |25uss

SBINNINTL



xs7e-spoday §9-1262 )0 Ko ¥ Nt SZIELZOTITG

SABUS AWed Jo LONEZIEN POSEAIIY] 03 SNP 5 SBHEA SIWL HY
Jeal [Rosy snees Jeak juelB s pue sumaB G S 103 SouasagEn Buju SU; 0) aNp 5 SOUBPEA SR oy

“WeIs SUBSISSY EEY Louslisws

CRACKD pue JuesD) yoeadny Suisnop quexn suojssues) Aflear wEHINYS JURID 2120 10 mISAs vEHINYS Jue1D Buuies; uswbeuen Jueed a1
IRBIABN LBJEISA URI0) UONISASI SRIOING WSHINYS e wawdoidus papoddng vSHNYS 94} Jof Suipuadssapun of 8np AWM 61 BIUBLRA ST v
"BE-QIADS 0] S9SUSDE 0} SNP 5) LUBLER S =14
"S80IUSS JUSHEEN0 paeRdRo-LIiE J& LOREIHAN Fwa] AUR O) SND S1 SIUBLIEA S]] o} 2
“sHoddng AUNURI0D PUE AUBD) JRUCSIS JOj PUlld IRIBUSCE) JO 31 DESeaIasp B 0] Snip &1 ssusuen Siy1 T

_ "JUagEdu; AR)S BUS SAANDG 18- LoD
SRADS RUE SUOddNS JuauREs] AJUNUeT) SAMSSEY "SEsmes Duin Auwer) pue ey [BUOSaG JO LOUSZIEn: M) B 0} 8NP S S0UBLIBA A1) aF
“UeREUIG0 pUB soddns pue Juanedul SlEs Jof UDTEZIIN DOSERUI3D O} SNp S| SOURIRA SIL) b
sopeq paulepdxe aue

s2:nbBy pojebpng Wl 000'028 MY %G Slupsexa seouse 204 anppUsdea 4G SSOUTUEA SIGEFOAR-UN DU 2/TRI0NE) STUSSaIdaT Bupwona) SUL 60L 526'2¢ Amepasdde Ag vogisod
FEIONE B U g seunpuedxe Apuenbesucs ‘£Le'OrE'g )Y 40 SeInipuadye papebong of paediiod LZ6°0Zp 91 se Poad (| L) IRUOIL uaASls AuU) Jof Sauipusdx  STUNLIONDSXE



Xk, Utilization Reports {July 2021 8 Augusi 2021)




Nd B¥'€ LZ0Z/5L/8

12102 Ad SNOSIHVdINOD NOLLVZITLLN

120z s1¢ AInp ybnouyl 0zZoz ‘1| 1290300 :pouad Hodsy

S3JIAEES LNIILVAN]I ALINNINIAOD HINOA

(681L°52) Jreson
sgvol pund |2i1susg
(rea'sa) PIEvIPE
:eoanog Buipung Aq (sjqeioaejun)/eiqesone
(6aL'cL$) Z08°9.2% 250°Zy28 o J VA 1S02 IVNNNY SS0¥9
1€ tora 1z SIDVHYIAY ATHLNOIN|
(68L'524) (s2) 206°9.2% S0g 850°2¥2S 9.2 SvLLITS 6LE SIVLOL
zL1'028 £z stL'0vs ¥ REELEIEELS
ZLIL'0ZS £z 985'0vs 34 lsnany
(68L'515) (Z8L'73) 1 806'v2S 44 zl1'0Z8 £z c.8'gss £ AN
(zsv'oss) (LEL'PS) b 806'42S iz Tll'0zs £2 +98°L3 43 INNP
(512'59s) SLOELS 3 PR Il zlL0Z$ £z 282028 (45 AVIN|
(oe2'8.s) (9.68) 1 Lriizs ez zLii'0zs €7 £12'8% g TREdV]
(¥SL2138) [Grvzzd (81) L19°Z¥s 4 TLL'0ES £2 SLL'Z$ g HOUVIA
(80£553) 85¥LLS v rLi8s 6 zliL'0zs £z Z68'ES ¥ Advnyg3d|
[EETEN L¥0'ELS t9) LELLS 62 TL102S £z 202°828 Ie AUVANYT
(202'61%) (o0v'v8) ir) LISHZS iz zl10Z8 £ LF0Z8 4 EEEIEREL
(2o¥'s18) (6ar'ers) (rr) 0¥o°y9s 19 ZI1028 £z 08 0 HIGWIAON
(8e6'0g%) (ge6'0ES) {ag) 60L°15% &% TLL'0ZS €2 160°L7$ LS ¥380100
[ECEEETTRY [ECEEEETRY (ajgeroaeiun) siEfjoQ sheq siejjog sfeg siejjoq sheg HINOW
3|qeioae SjqeloABS s|qeloAe]
aLi esuassgg soualaIg 12MI2Y LZ0Z Ad 19bpng 1.2/0Z A 1232y 0Z/61 Ad
1800 1s09 sheq



Nd 8%'€ LZ0E/5L/2

12102 Ad SNOSIHVJINOD NOLLVZITLLN

1202 “1si¢ AInr ybBnoays 020z IS 49903100 :poliad poday
SIDIANIS LNIILVANI ALINNIWINOD LINAV I

(pLv'82e’t) jieroL
(1£5°285) jin Avpyeey
(69¢'9t) pun4 [e18uUsD
(#20%65) pIB2IP3IAl
:2ainog Buipund Aq (s|qeloABiUn}/3|qBIOAES
(1v'8z2°1s) €2T0ST' TS 00L‘998°C oPL6LLYS 1S02 TVIINNY SSO¥9
g9 see Z9¢ SIOVHIAY ATHLNOW
(F2¥°8ZZ°1L%) (rogt1) £TZ0SY'YS | ¥S9v | ooL'eag’es | SLOY | OBLELLPS | TEEY STVLOL
S/1TZLS S¢e £89°21p¥S viv FEENEIEES
SILZZES See 686'2St$ o8t lsnoanv
(p1y°922'1s) (ggsielLs) (se1) 8sL'ests viv S.1°ZZES SEE £69°SITS Wi AN
(L62°960°1%) (€8z°s71s) (Zst) 856 29F$ 187 SLLZZES SEe 6520923 0lg INAF
(801L°156%) (eri'8sis) (g91) L16°08F% £0S S/1L'ZZES sge S¥0°182% 262 AVIN
99£°26.%) (z6Lz0LS) (601) 29g'vErs a4 5.1°22ES gge 282°152% ¥9z Y
(#21'069%) (222'765) (oot) BSOS sey SLETCES gge z18'£9z5 €8¢ HOUVYIN
(zs6'cess) (16z°8cis) (epL) 997°09¢$ L8t S.LZZES sge FLL'PLES oee Advnygad
(L9g9’25t8) (or¥'061.8) (002) sg5°ZLES SES Sl1zzes S£e 9L°s1e3 g6¢ AUYONYT
(1ez'2928) (Fz52018) FLL) 669°62F3 Bt gil'zzes 5 6.¥°18€3 Zot ¥IGNID3A
(zzz'8518) (z8¥'z68) (g6) IS9P LPS et SiL'zzes cge 629'¢8zs zoe H3gNINON
(avz 29%) (svz'29%) (82) 0Z¥'68¢S gi¥ SIL'TTES Gee 888°s6Z% £0E ¥=390L20
(ajgesoaeiun) (31qet0AEsUnN) {=1ges0AeLUN) siejjog sheqg siefjoq sheq siefloq skeqa HLNOW
s|geioAB s|qricAE a|geionsd
ala ERTTEYET TG EETTEYETT| 1emay LZ/0Z Ad yebpng 12102 A3 Moy 0Z/61 Ad
1509 1s09 sfeqg



Wd B¥€ LZ0e/SL/8

0.7vz't s |(eoe'ar) S| scos'srs s | sitvib $| LIL'SSS S 10L2v21$ 2T v965°82S 088°¢0L 69 IVLOL
sas'csg slleoal) s|ioezz S|cic’or S| H50918 S 695°e188 £18'99v°'9% S¥Z ¥N Ainr {dis) 5712
Herzn ey - $|isec'cz  $|ocesg ¢ |lecoegl) s (Ler'zig) +EE'9.98 Z88'L 2 88¥S Ainr} -s3d SIS[H
| £28°198 sy - s|zog'ser s$]o0z0'ge Slocicol S £18'L738 120°128°128 8BY'E0L  8IE £0Z8 finr| (w's}sTorod
[B0L J3Yig 49 IAH preaipapy 12bpng 150D EETIYE T ES ey | uuon
90.N0g Bulpung Ag soueues, (s|g=icaeIun) Mg 10 o fiea
sjqeioned skeg ‘Bay
31va 0L ¥VIA VIOV
SNOLLYINdOd 1TV TV.LOL
208'6228 0SH'86£'61% 280'Z9 98¢ IVLOL
1202FFS £21'191'38 oSl WN Ajnp (d1s) 5712
098 L¥L'es & 1 vZSS Anr| "S3d SISRD
119°2I7S 995’ IZZ €18 9/0'Z8  SLZ €1Z8 Ainp| (y'sisTo/od
1eBpng FET ] IS PBMISS ey | wuon|
(a1qesoneyun) WSl 10 "ON fjieg
a|geioned sheq “Bay
31va 01 HVIA TYNLOY
NOILYINdOd 1Inav aal
806'19.8 169'ZVT 6% 9097y I6T IVLOL
TePLEZS 060'6625 L] ¥N Anp (dig) 812
(150°8rLS) 08E'7295 Z9t°L 19 8873 Anpl "s3M SISED
18+'8.98 122'6.2'88 vrZ'ly 08l 10Z3 Anr| (wrs)sTorod
"In220 syoddng Buiar Aunwwo?) pue aiey) |Budsiad 13bpng 1509 80IABS poAasS 1By [T
s:2um Bumas juspuadapui auou-(dig) wesbolid Juspuadapu| pspoddng {sjgesoaejun) WSl 0 “oN fieqg
2|qeioneq sheg “Bay
1n220 suoddng Bulan AYUNwwoD) pue 31va ol x{mlpfln_.aj.‘.u«
D [2Uosiad assum Bumies pesusor-(y-g) [euapisay pazijedads
NOLLYINd0d 1INav 1N
.E_.__;_Hu:uo.ﬁ pue souspusadspul
‘uoisnjour funuwed i¢ [eod e ypm fousiowins- =S jeudsiad
UlEIUBW JO 3SB2.0ul 2 $9IMes-(50) suoddng Buiar Alunwwon (zoo'sy¥zs) 1B0'eZE 261 1 Iviol
0s YN Alnp (dis) 812
‘oj2 'Bumpeq ‘Buipss; Apung| se 282 695 £L8'8s ¥l E 6293 Anr] "s=d SIS
uans saniamoe j2uosiad A2p Lo Uo Spusu-('D°d) aleg [euosiad (F8ZvLES) $8Z'7LES 8LL L 99.°1% Ang| (4'8)S72/2d|
1sbpng 3500 TOIMBS  peaeS S1Ed | WuUon
(s1g=a0n4UN) sl jo ON Alreg
Iqeioned sfeq Bay

31v3 OL ¥VIA VLIV

(aara3s) NOLLYINdOd HLAOA

120z “s1¢ AIne yBnoayl 0zoz 15} 13903130 poliad Hoday
SNOILYINdOd TV
TYILNZQIS3H SIS0 T 36V TYNOSHI4 ‘(dIS 2 ¥'S) S1H¥0d4dNS ONIAIT ALINNNINGD

oozewe|EY JO S@IILaS pelesbau]




INd 87°E LZ0Z/1E/6

(31+'69) =301
ZIS'IL pund [2iausg
(gz6'08) piEvipe
:aounog Buipung Aq (sjgeroneiun }Riqetoiey
(91r's98) L0g°1Lez8 8250228 SPL'LIZS 1502 TVYNNNY SS0¥9
62 €2 1z SIOVHIAVY ATHLNOW|
{917'693) (12 L0E'L62% ¥Te 850°Z¥2S 8.2 I J B X A 6lE SIVLOL
zi1'0zs £ shL'ovs ¥ FECTEIRER |
(91+°639%) Wmmm.ma [63] £IT9ZE 9z ZLIL0ZS €2 98c'0vs 8Y 1snony
(roi'cas) gstv'iS 6 rLLZLS Tl TLL0ES €z 518'85$ €L Alnr
(zza'0Ls) (L06'7$) 0 8.0'sz$ £T 2L 028 €T ¥98'L$ [ aNNr
(c1z'ces) 510°2LS ) 15128 Il Z.L0Z8 £z 281028 Tz AYIN
(oez'g18) (az88) L irLiies Frd ZLL028 £z €288 ] TdY
(p52'218) (stvzzs) {a1) IL9ZF8 W ZLL'02s [34 SLL'LS g HOYVYIN
(g0e’sss) 85V LLS Ea ¥LL8S 6 ZLL02S £z Z68'ES 14 Advnygad
(e97'998) L¥0'ELS {a) LEL LS 62 zil'oes £z 102828 3 AUVANYT
(208’518} (00¥'+3) (%) L25%28 Jia zll'0zs 54 cIv0zs [¥3 EEEEREL]
(Lo¥'sis) (eat'+¥3) (#%) 0¥3'49% 19 z/1'0Z8 £z 0s 0 H3gINSAON
(ges'0cs) (gcs'0g$) (gz) 601°15% (T4 TLL0ZS £z 160°L¥S s H380100
(s1qe10nBILN) (a1gei0ABIUN) [EEEEETTY) siejjoQg sheq sig|jeq sheg sugjjeq sfeg HINOW
3jqioA] a|qeioaR] 3|q=ucAR]
aLA sausiaIg sausiagid 1eMOY LZ/0Z Ad 19bpng Lz/0T Ad 1My 0Z/61 Ad
3s00 3509 sheq

LZi0Z Ad SNOSIMVJINOD NOLLVZITLLN

1Z0Z Isi€ Isnbny ybnoiys 0Zoz S| 18qo100 :pousd Hoday

SIDIAYETS INIILVJNI ALINNININOD HINOA



Nd g¥c Le0Z/Le/e

L2/0Z Ad SNOSIHVJNOD NOLLVZITLLN

1202 “3S1€ 3SnBny ybnouyy 0Zoz S| 4990300 :poud Hodsy
SIDIANIS INJILVANI ALINNINWOD LINAY 1IN

|(zar‘agz’L) Jr=oL

|twz'seq) | AgresH

(EA pung [e1susg

|zez'1zel presipajy

:saunosg Buipung Ag (ajgeioaeiun)/a|qeioned
(zoL‘gaz‘1s) 280°Z19°v8 001998 0FPL'6LL'TS 1S02 TYNNNY SS0¥D
och gee Z9g SIOVHINY ATHLNOW|
(z91"g9z %) (ogst) 280°Z18'¥$ | SLO°S | 001°998°SS | 51Oy | OWL6LL'YS | ZvEY STv.1O1
§/1'228% gee £29°1¢¥$ viv FEETEIEEL]
(z9129z°19) (527°2918) (s21) 059°68%5 015 SI1'zZes see 686°Z5YS 08y lsnoanvy
(zg89'00L°1%) (egs’ieLs) (6gL) 8S.LEStS iV SLL'ZZES SEE £68'SLYS Wy Alnr
(¥0L'6968) |(e8L’sPLS) (1S1) 956°L97% 98y SLL'ZZES S€e 6S.°0SES 0.LE EQAN
[Grze'ezes) |(zvLgsts) (zs1) 116°08b$ 208 SLL°ZZES see SY0°1L8Z$ 86T AVIN|
|(625%799%) (z6L°z0LS) (zoL) LR 4 vy Sl1ZzZes see z8z°152% 9z RIEE
(£82°2953) ez ves) {ooL) L6E'9L¥S gey §.1°2ZEs gee 218°292% £82 HouvIN
(sa1°35+3) (16€°86S) |(ca1) 995°02¥S 8sy gll'zees gce PLHLTLES =3 A¥vVNEg3d
(PLL69cS) (06Z°crL$) (1s1) g9v'sers agy Sllzzes gge 191°6I¢Es 565 AMVINVE
(var'azes) (65+'968) |tzo1) veo'glys Lot SL1'7ZeS gee 6.¥°18€% 0% REE EfEle
(szo'ac1$) (ooo°15%) (ss) cllLeles 06¢ c/1'zzes see 629°582% 208 HIGWEAON
(5z0%6.8) (szo'sss) (og) 00Z°10vS Sip g/1ZTes set 2238°562S £0g ¥=F90100
(a1qes0nBiUnN) (a1qeloaeiun) (a/qeionelUn) siejjog sheq slejloq sAeq sigjjog sheg HINOW
3]geIioAB 3|geione sjgeione
aLi ERTTEYET | soualayig ey LZ/0Z Ad 19bpng 12/0Z Ad 1emaY 0Z/61 Ad
1509 1509 sheq



Wd ¥ LZ0Z/LT/6

¥SPE26 slero'er) slzeziies s|zecisi s|898FBlL S ¥S¥SZES 0L}'Z0EZES 69E°9LL SO IvioL
Z0E'899 s|larozL)  s|eov'ze s|zes'ze | cso'css S Z0£'899% LL'98L LS LbZ VN Bny| (dis) 5712
(oo0zsh) S| - s|ioe'sz  s|ees’es s [looszez) s (000Z51S) £96'51.85 1551 6L 9258 Bny| ‘S3u SISRIO
| ZCL'60v S1 - S|ise'zes ) ios'es s l(szrzil) S 25150 £60°00£'+ZS 218%LL  6if 8023 Bny| (¥'sls10/04
1=30.L i3y3Q 49 INH pIEdipai 1@bpng 3503 2dusg  paatesg | @B | Yiuow
Jainog bulpund Ag sousuep (s1qe10AB3UA) MSI jo ‘ON Ajeg
a|qriond sfeqg “Bay
2LVA OL WVIA TVLOY
SNOILYINdOd TIV TV.1O0L
6¥t'5998 A sig'ss  Lov IvLioL
190°00¥S ¥Z.'0.8'38 z8L VN bny (dis) 5712
£96'98 LFL'ES g 1 yzes Bny| -s3d sISHD
92'852s LFETLBS TS 69£'89 81T ¥L2s eny| (wslsTomd
1sbpng 1503 3JIAIBG  PAAIRS aley | thuolw
(s1qes0neyun) XS 10 ‘ON Apeg
3lqesoney sheq By
31vd Ol ¥VIA VLDV
NOLLYINdOd 1Inay aal
£9g8'cees £0L'18¥'018 208'ly 16T TYLOL
2Pz 8925 0655188 g9 ¥N bny {d1s) 5712
(ces'eezs) 805°L02% LEg'L 3 +zes Bny| -s3¥ SIS0
¥.Z'68FS +02'+92'5S L2'9% 0%k 20Zs bny| (wslsTo/0d
1n200 spoddng Sun Aunwwo] pue aue) |[euosied 1abpng 1500 SJ1aag paasag e nuo|
aseum Sumes 1uapuadspul 210w-{d)g) weiboid uspusdspu) peuoddng (srqesoneun) MSI 10 oN Aeg
3|geione sheg “BAY
unao0 sueddng Dua Aunwiwon pue J1¥3d OL ¥V3IA IVNLOY
2Je] [2udsiad sisym Bumas pasusor-(ty's) [enuapisay pazijeldads
' NOLLYINdOd 1INav 1IN
"AIARanNposd pue Souapuadapul
‘uorsnjoul funwwoD 1o (2o e yim Aousowyns- jss [euosiad
UIEJUIZW Jo SS28.0Ul €] S2oInes-(S10) sueddng Buiam Aunwwaos (1e6'cazs) 198°6b Z6L 1 VL0l
05 VN Bny]| (di1s) 512
*2)2 ‘Buigeq ‘Buipas) Aipune| se 165713 CLELLS ¥l 9 2085 bny| -s3d SISO
yons sspiaoe [euosiad Alep 1o uo spusy-(0d) s1eD |RUOSIaY [(grSgces) 8PS 8EES BLL ! 206'13 bny| (wsisTorod
12bpng 1500 SaIMIS  peAles | eied | WUoH|
(s1qeyoaeiun) sl e ‘oON Apreg
s|geioAed sfeq “Bay
31vQa O ¥VIA VALY =

(aa/a3s) NOILY INdOd HLNOA

120z 9sLe 3snbny ybnong 0zoz 351 4290390 pouad Hoday
SNOLLYINdOd TV

TYLLNZQAISTA SISIHD ? IUVD TYNOSHId (dIS 2 'S) S1¥0d4dNS ONIAM ALINNWWOD
oozeWeR) JO Sedwuas paleiBaly



X6,

INTEGRATED

Services of Kalamazoo

Community ¢ Independence ¢ Empowerment

Integrated Services of Kalamazoo

MOTION
Subject: July and August 2021 Disbursements
Meeting Date: September 27, 2021 Approval Date:
Prepared by: Heather Garcia September 27, 2021

Recommended Motion:

“Based on the Board Finance meeting review, I move that ISK approve the July 2021
vendor disbursements of $11,311,559.51 and the August 2021 vendor disbursements of

$8,145.762.77.”

Summary of Request:

As per the July 2021 Vendor Check Register Report dated 8/10/2021 that includes checks
issued from 7/1/2021 to 7/31/2021 and the August 2021 Vendor Check Register Report
dated 09/15/2021 that includes checks issued from 08/01/2021 to 08/31/2021.

I alfirm that all payments identified in the monthly summary above are for previously
appropriated amounts,

Date of Board
Staff: H. Garcia, Finance Director Consideration: September 27, 2021




INTEGRATED

Services of Kalamazoo
Community ® Independence * Empowerment

2030 Portage St. | Kalamazoo, M| 49001 | iskzoo.org | 269.553.8000

Aug. 26, 2021: FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE
CONTACT: Jeffrey W. Patton, Chief Executive Officer | Office: 269-553-8000
Cell: 269-720-7129 | jpatton@iskzoo.org

InterAct of Michigan transferring programs to Integrated Services of Kalamazoo
following revenue drop, COVID-19 impacts

Kalamazoo, Mich. — After 30 years of dedication to collaborative delivery of evidence-supported
mental health and substance use disorder treatments that foster hope and wellness, it has
been decided that InterAct of Michigan will transition its Kalamazoo programs and services to

Integrated Services of Kalamazoo by October 1, 2021.

During the current and past year, InterAct experienced a decrease in government funding and
has been limited in its delivery of services because of the COVID-19 pandemic. This contributed
heavily to the going concern whether the organization could continue in operation for the
foreseeable future. InterAct of Michigan, Inc. was incorporated as a private, non-profit agency
in 1991 and operates under the direction of a Board of Directors made up of community
leaders. The organization contracts with Integrated Services of Kalamazoo (ISK), Southwest
Michigan Behavioral Health (SWMBH), Network 180, and works with other insurance sources to

serve over 2,300 individuals annually.

Travis Swieringa, Chief Executive Officer of InterAct of Michigan stated, “InterAct has
appreciated working collaboratively with Integrated Services of Kalamazoo, Network 180 and

others in serving our communities. Our mission has driven us for over 30 years. In fulfilling that



mission, it is in the best interest of the people we serve to transition our programs at this time.”
interAct’s Board Chair, Lucinda M. Stinson, shared, “We care deeply about those we serve. Our
primary focus right now is to make sure that the community continues to receive critical
services that have been provided by InterAct of Michigan. We are also grateful to our more
than 150 dedicated and caring employees, especially during COVID, when they postponed

vacations and personal time off to care for people in crisis during the pandemic.”

Most InterAct staff will have the opportunity to apply for new positions opening up at I5K and

Network180 as a result of programs being transitioned to each organization.

Prior to being incorporated as a non-profit organization in 1991, InterAct was a division of
Kalamazoo Community Mental Health Services, which is now referred to as Integrated Services
of Kalamazoo. Jeff Patton, Chief Executive Officer of Integrated Services of Kalamazoo stated
that, "We value our long-standing partnership with InterAct and its excellent team of multi-
disciplinary staff and will continue to preserve our mutual commitment to the Kalamazoo
community in assuring evidence-supported treatments and services that maximize cutcomes
and recovery for individuals served. We will work ciosely with interAct’s administration and
Board of Directors to assure a smooth transition of specialty supports and services. | want to
commend the administration and Board of Birectors of InterAct for their 30 years of dedication
to the organization’s mission and persons served by helping build lives of recovery in the

Kalamazoo community.”

it




